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December 14, 2009 City oF lowA CITY

To the Citizens, Honorable Mayor, Members
of the City Council and City Manager
City of Towa City, Iowa

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of lowa City, Iowa (the City)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 is submitted herewith in accordance with the provisions of
Chapter 11 of the Code of Iowa. The City’s Finance Department prepared this report.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data presented and the completeness and fairness of
the presentation, including all disclosures, rest with the City. I believe the information, as
presented, is accurate in all material respects and presented in a manner designed to fairly present
the financial position and results of operations of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial affairs have been included.

This report consists of management’s representation concerning the finances of the City of lowa
City. Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management of the City has established a comprehensive internal control
framework that is designed both to protect the government’s asséts from loss, theft, or misuse and
to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City’s financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
" (GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather
than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As

management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is

complete and reliable in all material respects.

The CAFR reflects all funds of the City in accordance with standards set by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). In 1999, GASB adopted Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements — Management’s Discussion and Analysis — For State and Local
Governments. The final effective date for the implementation of GASB No. 34 for the City of
Iowa City was June 30, 2003. This report complies with those standards. This statement
significantly changes governmental financial reporting in order to bring it closer to a private
sector model.

Chapter 11 of the Code of Towa requires an annual audit to be performed. The independent public
accounting firm of Eide Bailly LLP was selected by the City. In addition to meeting the
requirements set forth in Chapter 11, the audit was also designed to meet the requirements of the
Single Audit Act of 1996 and related OMB Circular A-133.

While, the financial statements are the responsibility of the City, the responsibility of the auditor
is to express an opinion on the City’s financial statements based on their audit. The goal of the
independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the City’s financial statements for the
fiscal year ended, June 30, 2009 are free of material misstatement. The audit is conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and involves examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the



accounting principles used and significant estisateide by management; and evaluating
overall financial statement preparation.

The independent auditor concluded, based upon uti, @ahat there was a reasonable basis
rendering an unqualified opinion that the City @fvh City’s financial statements for the fiscal y¢
ended, June 30, 2009, are fairly presented in comtip with GAAP. The independent auditor
report on the basic financial statements and compimnd individual fund statements a
schedules is included in the financial sectiorh@f teport.

As a recipient of federal financial assistance, @ty is responsible for ensuring that adequ
internal controls are in place to ensure compliamitie applicable laws and regulations relatec
these federal programs. These internal accountimygaaministrative controls are subject
periodic evaluation by the City's management and thei€required to undergo an annual sin
audit in conformity with the provisions of the SiacAudit Act of 1996 and the U.S. Office «
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-13&idits of State and Local Governments

The results of the City's single audit for thedisgear ended June 30, 2009 provided no instaric
material weaknesses in the internal controls onifsignt violations of applicable laws ar
regulations based upon the audit of the basic ¢iahstatements. Information related to this sin
audit, including the schedules of federal finanaissistance, findings and questioned costs,
independent auditors’ reports on the internal aoting and administrative controls ai
compliance with applicable laws and regulationsiaotuded in the compliance section of tt
report.

GAAP require that management provide a narratiteodiiction, overview, and analysis
accompany the basic financial statements in the foff Management’s Discussion and Analy
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed ¢omplement the MD&A and should be read
conjunction with it. The City’'s MD&A can be founehmediately following the report of th
independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

The City of lowa City was incorporated April 6, IB5The City is governed by a seven mem
Council; each member serves a four-year term. tilex are held every two years allowing i
continuation in office of at least three members at eacibieglection. The Council members &
elected at large, but three members are nominated pecific districts, and the four oth
members are nominated at large. The Council eteetdlayor from its own members for a tw
year term.

The City Council is the legislative body and makégolicy determinations for the City throug
the enactment of ordinances and resolutions.sdt atlopts a budget to determine how the City
obtain and spend its funds. The Council appointsmbers of boards, commissions &
committees.

The City Manager is the chief administrative offider the City and is appointed by the C
Council. The City Manager implements policy demisi of the City Council and enforces C
ordinances. In addition, the City Manager appoand directly supervises the directors of
City’s operating departments and supervises tharastnation of the City’s personnel system. |
supervises 555 full-time and 82 permanent part-timenicipal employees and 446 tempor:
employees, including a police force of 73 sworrspenel and a fire department of 56 firefighte
The City owns and operates its water supply antfilslision system and sewage collection ¢
treatment system with secondary treatment alsoigedy Virtually the entire City has separ:



storm and sanitary sewer systems. The City opemt®unicipal off-street and on-street park
system in the downtown area. Since 1971, thel@isyoperated a transit system.

The annual budget serves as the foundation forCihgs financial planning and control. A
departments of the City are required to submit estpufor appropriation to the City Manager
October. The City Manager uses these requestiseastarting point for developing a propos
budget. The City Manager then presents this pexpdsudget to the Council for review
December. The Council is required to hold a puldiaring on the proposed budget and to adc
final budget no later than March 15. The apprdpdaudget is prepared by fund, function (e
Public Safety), and department (e.g., Police).

The City adopts a three-year financial plan theluides both operations and capital improveme
This three-year plan permits a more comprehenstwgew of the City’s financial conditior
allowing analysis of the current and future neaus r@quirements. During preparation of the pl
careful review is made of property tax levy ratetdity and user fee requirements, ending c
balances by fund, debt service obligations, bondniting needs, capital outlay for equipm
purchases and major capital improvement projedis. sfate requires at least a one-year oper:
budget. While legal spending control is exerciged state mandated function level, manager
control is set at the Department Manager levelcuBrbrance accounting is utilized in all funds -
budgetary control. Encumbrances outstanding at-gme for the governmental fund types
reflected as reservations of the fund balancesprdypiations that are not encumbered lapse a
end of the year.

Information Useful in Assessing the Government's Eanomic Condition

The City's economic strength is based upon edutatioedical services, and diversifie
manufacturing. The University of lowa is the Cityfargest employer with almost 28,8(
employees and the University of lowa Hospitals @iohics is the largest university-owne
teaching medical center in the United States. Tite &'so has a significant number of prive
employers who have a history of providing stabld entreasing employment in the communi
The relative stability of the University of lowa, qded with the City’s multi-sector base
industrial and commercial interests, will contineehielp insulate the City from the significa
negative economic impacts related to unemployment.

The City continues to see sustained production imr@jor local industries, such as ACT and N
Pearson. Continued economic development effoehiimg the lowa City and Coralville
Chambers of Commerce, local private interests, Uheversity of lowa and other surroundir
communities through participation as members oflthea City Area Development Group, ha
proved positive with the retention and expansiomuginesses. In addition, the corridor betw:
lowa City and Cedar Rapids has been identifiednasad the major growth areas for new busin
development in the State of lowa. Continued devetgs within lowa City and the region have
favorable impact upon the City's economy.

There have been budget challenges faced by the &tédwa; however, the City's economy a
whole continues to grow. The major employers haaenkable to maintain their workforce si:
The unemployment rate for lowa City continues tmaa low at 4.3% for the month of Jul
2009, as compared to 6.2% for the State of lowa, and 9.5% forttbeataverage. The City he
consistently experienced modest increases in asbga®perty valuations. The rate of n
housing construction slightly decreased in compari® prior years with 114 new single-fami
houses and 101 multi-family dwelling units addedhe tax rolls for the year ended Decem!
31, 2008. This, along with the low unemployment ratmtinues to be indicative of the City
relative economic stability.



The 2000 census population of lowa City was 62,22ased on the United States Cen:
Bureau, the population was estimated to be 67,831 in 2088gjpresents a 9.0% increase.

In response to the current national economic rémesthe American Recovery and Reinvestm
Act, signed into law by President Obama in Febr20§9, is designed to preserve and cre
jobs and promote economic recovery, assist peopleadted by the recession, provi
investments needed to increase economic efficieang, stabilize state and local governm
budgets. While lowa City’s housing market and unleympent has not felt the impact as gree
as other areas of the country, the City has beentahltilize stimulus funds to complete proje
and strengthen the local economy. lowa City hasiepfor funds totaling $43,663,000 and h
been approved for $6,359,000, with another $32,267 l0Ppending. These projects vary fro
resurfacing Highway 218 to reconstructing an airport mynand purchasing 3 new buses.

In addition, the State of lowa’s stimulus prograndpbs, is designed to create jobs, strengt
the economy, and build a safer, stronger, greenersaradter lowa. The City has applied 1
$14,469,000 in I-Jobs funds and has been approved for $7,76@j@0@n additional $6,605,00
pending. These funds will be used for projectsudiclg a fourth fire station and UniverCi
Neighborhood Partnership, a joint project betweerCitbeand the University of lowa.

There are many signs that the City remains healtidyvibrant with great promise for the futu
The University of lowa continues to add new buitgirand facilities. The City continues to ¢
sustained production in major local industries. btdal and commercial interests within tl
community continue to thrive.

Major Initiatives

lowa City continues to deal with the recovery efdrom the flood experienced in 2008. T
City of lowa City was among several cities in lowsat received a Presidential Disas
declaration, which brought the Federal Emergency ddament Agency (FEMA) technical at
financial assistance to lowa City. These on-goifigres include relocation of the Nort
Wastewater Plant, constructing a pump station and stormwatets, as well as, flood gates, a
rebuilding the City’'s Animal Shelter. In additiorhet City has received a Hazard Mitigati
Grant and Community Development Block Grant to asgproperties in the flood-impacte
neighborhoods.

The City is currently in the process of developangeneral industrial park on the southeast <
This project involves annexing and rezoning 18@saf land and building the street, water, :
sewer infrastructure needed to support industnisirtiesses. This project is estimated to «
$5,405,000 and will be funded through Tax Incremenaiicing. This project is scheduled to
completed in phases, with the land being “shovel readyihftustries to build.

The City of lowa City is in the planning process amnstructing a mixed-use parking facili
adjacent to downtown lowa City. The mixed-use pagKacility will include three component:
parking facility consisting of approximately 600 rkiag spaces, commercial space

approximately 25,000 — 35,000 square feet, and 25 watkforce housing units. The City

hoping to work with a private partner to develop tommercial and housing spaces. As thi
still in the planning phase, the cost of this project is unkndut it is anticipated that the parkit
facility will be financed with bonds and the comciat and housing space will be funded by -
private developer in conjunction with the City. Tty anticipates establishing an urb
renewal area for the purposes of allowing Tax Immet Financing of the commercial al
residential space.



Long-term Financial Planning

In preparing the financial plan for the three yeamsling June 30, 2013, the process of bu
balancing has been difficult. With the continued teithtions imposed by the state (specific:
the residential rollback factor) and other federal dategegulations and mandates, the munic
service needs for our growing community are becoming isorgly difficult to satisfy.

In balancing the budget for the three-year peribd, @ity attempted to maintain service lev
wherever practical. In addition, our planning hasrbdirected at maintaining our current fis
strength and avoiding any erosion of that fiscal posiiioeiuding the City’s Aaa bond rating.

A continuing major objective in the three-year fingl plan is to maintain or increase the Ci
cash reserve position. In addition, proceduresvaelopted to allocate unreserved fund bala
between the contingency and undesignated fund dedanThe contingency fund is available du
the fiscal year for unanticipated and unbudgetgrbiditures, while the undesignated fund bal
is intended to bemaintained as working capital. The City is comedttto drawing from th
undesignated fund balance only in emergency stsiti This unreserved fund balance alloce
along with specific budgeting techniques has allowed thet€increase or maintain fund balan
over the past year.

The City continues to pursue cooperative effortthvather local governments. Joint fundi
purchasing, planning and other efforts allow they @it meet mandates for new and impro
services in the future at the most reasonable cdsint cooperation currently encompas
regional transportation planning, human servicesd saghste management planning, a hazart
materials response program, an enhanced 911 ensgrgemmunications system, commur
relations, joint operation of an animal control féigiand an indoor swimming pool facility, al
joint economic development efforts. While such capive efforts are not new in concept,
City expects to enter into more agreements witlghimiring governmental subdivisions, as v
as with the University of lowa.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association oflllnéed States and Canada (GFOA) award
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in FinehdReporting (the Certificate) to the City
lowa City, lowa for its Comprehensive Annual Finah&eport for the fiscal year ended June
2008. The Certificate is the highest form of regtign for excellence in state and local finan
reporting.

In order to be awarded the Certificate, a goverralamit must publish an easily readable

efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual FinahBi@port, whose contents conform to prog!
standards. The Comprehensive Annual Financial Repost satisfy both accounting princip
generally accepted in the United States of Ameari@happlicable legal requirements.

The Certificate is valid for a period of one yeatyo The City has received the Certificate for
last twenty four consecutive years. | believe ourrent report continues to conform to
Certificate requirements and am submitting it toGAFto determine its eligibility for anoth
certificate.

Responsibility and Acknowledgments

The Department of Finance prepared the Compreherginual Financial Report of the City
lowa City, lowa for the fiscal year ended June 3P The City Council, as required by law



responsible for the complete and accurate preparation of the City’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report. I believe that the information presented is accurate in all material respects and
that this report fairly presents the financial position and results of operations of the various funds
of the City. '

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the City's Finance Department. I would like to
express my appreciation to all members of the department who assisted and contributed to its
preparation. I want to especially recognize the contributions of the City’s Controller, Robin
Marshall, Assistant Controller, Sara Sproule, Internal Auditor, Nickolas Schaul, Senior Accountant,
Justin Armatis and Payroll Accountant, Chris Hurlbert.

Also, I thank the Mayor, members of the City Council and the City Manager for their interest and
support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a dedicated, responsible,
and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,
( a
W(/(/\ '

Kevin O’Malley
Director of Finance
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Council Member Amy Correia

Council Member Matt Hayek

Council Member Ross Wilburn

Council Member Mike Wright
APPOINTED OFFICIALS

Acting City Manager Dale E. Helling
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11

Term Expires

January 1, 2012
January 1, 2010
January 1, 2010
January 1, 2010
January 1, 2012
January 1, 2012
January 1, 2012

Date of Hire

August 16, 1975
May 21, 1979
March 18, 1996

September 22, 1975

July 28, 1975
January 26, 1981

February 22, 1984
December, 29, 1997

March 20, 1995
July 14, 1978

September 26, 1983

August 19, 1985
August 29, 2005



Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of lowa City
Iowa

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2008

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports {CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

President

Gy G-

Executive Director
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EideBailly

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of lowa City, lowa

We have audited the accompanying financial statesnanihe governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate imnwafund information of the City of lowa City, \a,

as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, whitlectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. dliemncial statements are the responsibility & th
management of the City of lowa City, lowa. Our @sgibility is to express opinions on these finahcia
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with audisitagndards generally accepted in the United Stdtes o
America and the standards applicable to finanaigita contained irGovernment Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the UnitedeStaThose standards require that we plan andrperfo
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abouthehéhe financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on d bessis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An auldiv ancludes assessing the accounting principlesl us
and the significant estimates made by managememigh®s evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabmve present fairly, in all material respectg th
respective financial position of the governmentdhaties, the business-type activities, each méjod,
and the aggregate remaining fund information ofGhg of lowa City, lowa, as of June 30, 2009, &mel
respective changes in financial position, and dksis, where applicable, thereof for the year teeded
in conformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of America.

Subsequent to the issuance of the City’'s 2009 &iadrstatements and our report dated December 14,
2009, we became aware that certain testing proesdrgquired by U.S. Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Goraents, and Non-Profit Organizations, had not been
performed. Upon performing those procedures, aificaton was made to our Report on Compliance
with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Programd on Internal Control over Compliance in
Accordance with OMB Circular A-133. In our origlnmaport we expressed an unqualified opinion on the
2009 financial statements, and our opinion on tHowmcial statements, as expressed herein, remains
unqualified.
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In accordance witlsovernment Auditing Standardse have also issued our report dated December 14,
2009, on our consideration of the City’s internahttol over financial reporting and on our teststef
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regiglas, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describedbpe of our testing of internal control over finahc
reporting and compliance and the results of thdtnggsand not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliandéat report is an integral part of an audit perfednin
accordance witlsovernment Auditing Standardsd should be considered in assessing the redudis
audit.

The management’'s discussion and analysis and otlgeired supplementary information listed in the
table of contents are not a required part of thsicbdinancial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles getigraccepted in the United States of America. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which ted principally of inquiries of management

regarding the methods of measurement and presemtafi the required supplementary information.

However, we did not audit the information and expreo opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forngpgnions on the financial statements that colledyiv
comprise the basic financial statements of the @itylowa City, lowa. The introductory section,
combining nonmajor fund financial statements, atatisical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required pathefbasic financial statements of the City of laity,
lowa. The accompanying Schedule of Expendituresaderal Awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office aifdgement and Budget (OMB) Circular A-1238dits

of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Orgatiwns,and is also not a required part of the basic
financial statements of the City of lowa City, lawghe combining nonmajor fund financial statements
and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awaaie been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial stateteeand, in our opinion, are fairly stated in attsrial
respects in relation to the basic financial statemésiten as a whole. The introductory and statistica
sections have not been subjected to the auditingepiures applied in the audit of the basic findncia
statements, and accordingly, we express no opumaem.

é‘o/ﬁu/g Ler

Dubuque, lowa
December 14, 2009, except for the Schedule of Edpees of Federal Awards listed in the last
paragraph above which is dated May 31, 2012
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of lowa City, we preséig harrative overview and analysis of the finah
activities of the City for the fiscal year endechdu30, 2009. This narrative is intended to be use
conjunction with additional information that is lnded in the letter of transmittal, which can berfdwon
pages 3 — 8 of this report.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City of lowa City exceeded #bilities at the close of the fiscal year endingel30,
2009 by $390,477,000 (net assets). Of this amouft/88,000 (unrestricted net assets) may be ust
meet the government’s ongoing obligations teitzens and creditors.

The City’s total net assets increased by $23,164¢i0ihg the fiscal year. Governmental activiti
increased by $15,572,000 and business-type activitiesaseueoy $7,592,000.

At the close of the current fiscal year, the Citgevernmental funds reported combined ending f
balances of $42,123,000, an increase of $1,702,00@mparison with the prior year. Of this tot
amount, approximately $24,470,000, or 58% was unredaamd is available for spending at the Cit
discretion.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’saserved, undesignated fund balance for the Gel
Fund was $15,362,000, or 33% of total General Fund expegslitur

The City’s total debt decreased by $9,625,000, duttiegcurrent fiscal year. The key factors to t
decrease were the refunding of bonds to take adganof lower interest rates and the retiremen
bonds.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to sesvanaintroduction to the City’s basic financialtstaents.
The City’s basic financial statements are compriesédhree components: 1) government-wide finan
statements, 2) fund financial statements; and 3ot the financial statements. This report alstaios
other supplementary information in addition to the b&sancial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial StatementsThe government-wide financial statemeate designed to provid
readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances in a er@similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assqisesents information on all of the City's assetd habilities, with the difference
between the two reported ast assets Over time, increases or decreases in net assgtsans as a useft
indicator of whether the financial position of the Cityngproving or deteriorating.

The statement of activitiepresents information showing how the City’s nete#s changed during the mc
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets @perted as soon as the underlying event givingtasée
change occurs, regardless of the timing of relasst dlows. Thus, revenues and expenses are repor
this statement for some items that will only resuitash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollddsxes
and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statementstidguish functions of the City that are princiga
supported by taxes and intergovernmental reveng@ge(nmental activitigsfrom other functions that ar
intended to recover all or a significant portiontbéir costs through user fees and charpesifess-type
activitieg. The governmental activities of the City incluBeblic Safety, Public Works (roads, trafi
controls, and transit), Culture and Recreation, Conityamd Economic Development, General Governm
and Interest on long-term debt. The business-agiwities of the City include Airport, Cable Telsion,
Housing Authority, Parking, Sanitation, Stormwater CoitectWastewater Treatment, and Water.
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The government-wide financial statements may be found gaspz6 — 29 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements:A fundis a grouping of related accounts that is usechamtain control ovel
resources that have been segregated for specifitias or objectives. The City, like other stateddocal
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and régrate compliance with finance-related le
requirements. All of the funds of the City can beided into three categories: governmental fur
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to account for esdigrtie same function reported .
governmental activities in the government-wide ficial statements. However, unlike the governmenev
financial statements, governmental fund financiateshents focus onear-terminflows and outflows o
spendable resourceas well as orbalances of spendable resoura@silable at the end of the fiscal ye
Such information may be useful in evaluating a goreent's near-term financing requirements anc
typically the basis that is used in developing the nextiahbudget.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower thaotithe government-wide financial statement:
is useful to compare the information presentedyfmrernmental funds with similar information preszhtor
governmental activities in the government-wide fiicial statements. Both the governmental fund bale
sheet and the governmental fund statement of regmxpenditures, and changes in fund balances pra\
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison.

The City has five major governmental funds: Gendfahd, Employee Benefits Fund, Commun
Development Block Grant Fund, Other Shared RevendeGrants, and Debt Service Fund. Informatiol
presented separately in the governmental fundsnbalaheet and in the governmental funds statenfe
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balémcésese major funds. Data from all other non-me
governmental funds is combined into a single agafesty presentation and are referenced under a s
column as “Other Governmental Funds”. Individuahdudata on each of these non-major governme
funds is provided in the form @bmbiningstatementglsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for amgonental funds as required by state statute. Bu
comparisons have been provided for the Governmdnotals and the Enterprise funds, to demonst
compliance with the adopted budget.

The basic governmental funds financial statements céouipel on pages 30 — 35 of this report.

Proprietary Funds: The City maintains two different types of propaist funds. Enterprise fundsare used
to report the same functions presented as business-tiyyigezcin the government-wide financial statemer
The City uses enterprise funds to account for itpdkt, Cable Television, Housing Authority, Parkir
Sanitation, Stormwater Collection, Wastewater Treaimand Water activitiednternal Service fundare an
accounting device used to accumulate and alloazgts énternally among the City’s various functioriBhe
City has four Internal Service Funds: Equipment mitmance, Central Services, Loss Reserve,
Information Technology. Because these servicesopnethntly benefit governmental rather than busin
type functions, they have been included within goweental activities in the government-wide finamc
statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of infoiamats the government-wide financial statementky; ion
more detail. Parking, Wastewater Treatment, Watanjt&ion, and Housing Authority Funds are congde
to be major funds and are reported individuallytiyhout the report. The other three non-major priss
funds are grouped together for reporting purposddisted under a single heading “Other Enterprisedstl

Detailed information for each of the non-major fans provided in the combining statements on p&ges
90. Individual fund data for the Internal Serviagnds is provided in the form of combining staterse
elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements caiolied on pages 36 — 41 of this report.
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Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not available to support the City’s own programs and therefore are not
reflected in the government-wide financial statements. The City has two fiduciary funds: Project Green and
Library Foundation, which are maintained as agency funds.

The basic fiduciary funds financial statements can be found on page 42.

Notes to Financial Statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 43 — 76 of this report. '

Other Information: The combining statements referred to in the above paragraphs in connection with non-
major governmental funds, non-major enterprise funds, and internal service funds are presented immediately
following the notes.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

* As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In
the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $390,477,000 at the close of the fiscal year ended June 30,
2009.

By far, the largest portion of the City’s net assets reflect its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, building,
machinery and equipment, improvements other than buildings, and infrastructure), less any related debt to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to its
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in
its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt
must be provided from other resources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

City of Inwa City's Net Aszets
June 30, 2000
({amounts expressed in thousands)
Governmental Business-type
activities artivities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Current and other assets 126,588 $ 118167 $ 09,372 $ 95,730 $ 225966 $ 213897
Capital assets 167,330 157,273 254,404 257,034 421,734 414,307

Total Assets 293,918 275,440 353,782 352,764 647,700 628,204
Long-term lishilities outstanding 83,928 84,442 103,551 110,027 187,479 194,469
Current and other lishilities 64,725 61,305 5,019 5117 - 69,744 66,422

Total Lighilities 148,653 145,747 108,570 115,144 257223 260,891
Net assets:
Irvested in capital assets, net of

related debt 100,741 87,7123 162,211 160,330 262,952 248,053
Restricted 26,586 23,741 19,150 21,320 45,745 45,061
Unzestricted 17,938 18,229 63,842 55,970 81,730 74,199

Total Net Assets 145,265 $ 120693 $ 245212 $ 237820 $ 390,477 $ 367313
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A portion of the City’s net assets (11.5% or $45,7@8)0represents resources that are subject to @xtern
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaimialgnce of the unrestricted net assets (21.1% or
$81,780,000) may be used to meet the governmentsimm@bligations to its citizens and creditors. tiA¢

end of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the City is ablpdd positive balances in all three categories of
net assets, both for the government as a whole, bhsasvéor its separate governmental and busingss-ty
activities.

Governmental Activities: Governmental activities increased the City’s netets by $15,572,000. The
increase in net assets of governmental activiteeprimarily due to expenditures for capital asdets
depreciation expense.

The following is a more detailed review of FY09's operation.
City of lowa City's Changes in Net Assets
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for services $ 6,701 $ 6,379 $ 36,227 $ 34,876 $ 42,928 $ 41,255
Operating grants and contributions 8,185 3,611 7,293 6,281 15,478 9,892
Capital grants and contributions 3,773 1,747 3,705 2,798 7,478 4,545
General Revenues:
Property taxes 47,085 43,400 - - 47,085 43,400
Road use tax 5,254 5,432 - - 5,254 5,432
Other taxes 1,489 1,435 - - 1,489 1,435
Earnings on investments 3,057 3,932 2,577 3,279 5,634 7,211
Gain on disposal of capital assets - - 360 1,260 360 1,260
Other 4,894 3,509 317 454 5,211 3,963
Total revenues 80,438 69,445 50,479 48,948 130,917 118,393
Expenses:
Public safety 20,730 20,504 - - 20,730 20,504
Public works 15,177 13,727 - - 15,177 13,727
Culture and recreation 9,574 13,460 - - 9,574 13,460
Community and economic development 8,726 1,850 - - 8,726 1,850
General government 7,600 7,433 - - 7,600 7,433
Interest on long-term debt 3,264 3,617 - - 3,264 3,517
Wastewater treatment - - 11,925 11,757 11,925 11,757
Water - - 9,185 8,804 9,185 8,804
Sanitation - - 7,296 6,868 7,296 6,868
Housing authority - - 7,238 7,374 7,238 7,374
Parking - - 4,489 3,913 4,489 3,913
Airport - - 693 560 693 560
Stormwater - - 1,223 1,072 1,223 1,072
Cable television - - 633 598 633 598
Total expenses 65,071 60,491 42,682 40,946 107,753 101,437
Change in net assets before transfers 15,367 8,954 7,797 8,002 23,164 16,956
Transfers 205 488 (205) (488) - -
Change in net assets 15,572 9,442 7,592 7,514 23,164 16,956
Net assets beginning of year 129,693 120,251 237,620 230,106 367,313 350,357
Net assets end of year $ 145,265 $ 129,693 $ 245,212 $ 237,620 $ 390,477 $ 367,313
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Business-type Activities: Business-type activities increased the City's t@asets by $7,592,000. T
increases in net assets were primarily in the Water, Sanitation, and Airport funds. For all bussigge
activities, revenues exceeded expenses by $7,797,000.

The graphs on the following pages represent a Hmak of revenue by source and expenditures by pno
area for governmental and business-type activities.
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Dollars ($)

Govemmental Activities
FY2009 Expenditures
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Financial Analysis of the Government’'s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accountingrtsuee and demonstrate compliance with financeeae
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds: The financial reporting focus of the Citygovernmental fundss to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and bakes of spendable resources. Such information
belis useful in assessing the City’s financing nements. In particulaynreserved fund balanaeay serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources azddabpending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the Ciyg'¢ernmental funds reported combined ending
balances of $42,123,000, an increase of $1,702,000mparison with the prior year. Of this total amaq!
$24,470,000 constitutes unreserved fund balance, vihigtailable to use as working capital for the &af
Fund since property tax revenues are received twvibe a year and the remainder is available to rties
future needs of the CityThe remainder of the fund balance (41.9%) is reskto indicate that it is ni
available for new spending because it has alreaéy lkommitted. This remainder has been committ¢d
liquidate contracts and purchase orders of ther greyiod ($1,780,000), 2) to fund various debt ser
payments ($11,759,000), 3) to fund employee retirereemmitments ($2,236,000), and 4) restrictec
grant agreements ($1,566,000).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of @lity. As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009,
unreserved fund balance of the General Fund wag862®00, while General Fund’s total fund balance
$15,917,000.As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useftdmpare both unreserved fL
balance and total fund balance to total fund experes. Unreserved fund balance represents 32.5% of
General Fund expenditures ($47,250,000), while total hatance represents 33.7% of that same amour

The fund balance of the City’s General Fund incedasy $983,000 during the current fiscal ye@his was
due to budget reductions and fee increases in respmiise economic conditions.

The Bridge, Street, and Traffic Control Constructieend had a deficit fund balance of ($1,883,000
compared to a deficit balance of ($1,595,000) inpttier period. This fund accounts for transactioglating
to the acquisition or construction of major streéridges, and traffic control facilities. The défis due tc
capital expenditures. The City anticipates recgivitmds from the lowa Department of Transportatidh
not, bonds will be issued in 2010 to cover the capital edipges.

The Debt Service Fund had a fund balance of $110089an increase of $3,068,000 from the prior yeha
of which is reserved for the payment of debt service (iynpat of general obligation principal and intere

Proprietary Funds: The City’s proprietary funds provide the sameetypf information found in th
government-wide financial statements, but in more detalil

The ending net assets of the enterprise funds $288,102,000, a net asset increase of $7,282,008 was
primarily due to an increase in unrestricted neets Of the enterprise funds’ net assets, $162,20 1
invested in capital assets, net of related debtres&iricted net assets totaled $56,732,000, an inciaf
$7,562,000 compared to the previous year.

The Internal Service funds showed net assets ngté$20,401,000 as of June 30, 2009, an increa
$871,000 from the previous year.

Budgetary Highlights

The City presents budgetary information as allowedASB Statement No. 41. Budgets are based on
functional areas as required by state statute, not lydufund type.
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The City had three budget amendments during tlwalfigear, which is higher than our common practice
two amendments. These amendments increased thedixpe budget by $132,920,000 to a total «
$274,133,000. This represented a 94.1% increase. nEjer increase was due to capital projects
governmental and business-type funds due to timfragpmpletion of projects and ongoing recovery fribva
flood of 2008.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets:The City’s investment in capital assets for its gowvnental and business-type activities as
June 30, 2009 amounts to $421,734,000 (net of accteduliepreciation). This investment in capital asse
including land, buildings, improvements other thailddugs, equipment, streets, bridges, trails, wastewa
and water systems, and other infrastructure repie$ea value of resources utilized to provide smEwito its
citizens. The City’'s investment in capital asseads the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 increased
$10,057,000 for governmental activities compared to the peiar and decreased by $2,629,000 for busine
type activities over the prior year.

The following table reflects the $421,734,000 investneapital assets (net of accumulated depreciation
City of lowa City's Capital Assets

(net of depreciation)
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Land $ 17,483 $ 15,481 $ 25,783 % 25,921 $ 43,266 $ 41,402
Buildings 44,973 43,645 74,866 77,703 119,839 121,3
Improvements other than

buildings 3,721 3,736 7,233 7,666 10,954 11,4(
Machinery and equipment 12,389 12,420 9,265 10,304 21,65 22,724
Infrastructure 74,458 69,997 131,052 124,641 205,510 6B®4,
Construction in progress 14,306 11,994 6,205 10,799 20,511 22,793

Total $ 167,330 $ 157,273 $ 254,404 $ 257,034 $ 421,734 $ 414,307

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal yednded the following:

Airport projects included runway design, gradinghtigg, paving, and runway extension. Projec
completed during the year totaled $4,899,000 anctgi®jremaining in construction in progress at fisc
year end totaled $3,243,000.

A variety of street and bridge construction in nesidential areas and replacement and expansior
existing infrastructure amounted to $5,180,000. Thidudes the continuation of the McColliste
Boulevard extension project at $4,342,000.

The demolition and reconstruction of fire statidhat a cost of $1,376,000 in FY09 plus prior yeatso
for a total cost of $2,860,000.

Improvements to government buildings at a cost of $1,494,000

Additional information on the City’s capital assets barfound in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Debt Administration: At the end of the fiscal year, the City had totaintbed debt outstanding of
$172,810,000. Of this amount, $84,995,000 comprisestiadited by the full faith and credit of the City
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However, 5.1% of this total, $4,341,000, is debt that serves enterprise funds and is abated by their charges for
services and 7.8% of this total, $6,660,000, is debt that will be paid with Tax Increment Financing revenues.
The remaining $87,815,000 represents revenue bonds secured solely by specific revenue sources.

City of Iowa City's Outstanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

{amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 - 2008
General obligation honds $ 80,654 $ 82177 3 4341 $ 4913 $ 34,995 $ 87.090
Revenue honds - - 87815 95,345 87.815 95,345
Total $ 80654 % 82177 0§ 92156  $ 100258  § 172810 § 182435

During the current fiscal year the City’s total bonded debt decreased by $9,625,000.

The City issued $30,035,000 in General Obligation bonds during FY09. The bonds were used to finance the
cost of the City’s 2009 Capital Improvements Programs and current refunding of $23,140,000 of general
obligation bonds. The refunding was undertaken to reduce total future debt service payments. The result of

the transaction is a reduction of $2,257,000 in future debt service payments and an economic gain of
$1,977,000. ‘

The City continues to have the same excellent bond rating on its General Obligation bonds that it has had for
the past several years. This rating is given to those bonds judged to be of the best quality and carrying the
smallest degree of investment risks. The City's bond ratings by Moody’s Investors Services, Inc. as of June
30, 2009 were as follows:

General obligation bonds Aaa
Parking revenue bonds A
Wastewater treatment revenue bonds A

™ Water revenue bonds A

The City continues to operate well under the State debt capacity debt limitations. State statute limits the amount
of General Obligation Debt outstanding to 5% of the assessed value of all taxable property in Iowa City. The
current debt limitation for the City is $214,042,000. With outstanding General Obligation Debt applicable to
this limit of $84,995,000 we are utilizing 39.7% of this limit.

~ More detailed information on debt administration is provided in Note 6 of the financial statements.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

In May 2009, the voters of Iowa City approved a one cent local option sales tax. This tax will be collected for
four years beginning July 1, 2009. Based on current funding projections, the City Council has indicated that
the priorities for use of this sales tax will be the elevation of Dubuque Street, including the reconstruction of
Park Road Bridge, and the relocation of the North Wastewater Plant. Sales tax proceeds will be used to
provide local match for available state and federal funding and to reduce our reliance on property tax and
increased user fees otherwise needed to fund such projects.

During the 2009 session, the Iowa State Legislature passed a law allowing cities to utilize franchise fee tax as

a revenue alternative to property tax effective for FY11. The Iowa City Council has passed a local franchise
fee tax of 2% on natural gas and electricity to support addition public safety initiatives.
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The City expects continued constraints by the State’s property tax formula. The rollback on residential
properties negatively affects the City’s general operating funds and without the potential for new revenue
sources, like those mentioned above, the City’s opportunities for new initiatives are limited. The Council has
established a balance budget in the General Fund for FY10 that strives to maintain current service delivery
levels. The tax levy rate per $1,000 of taxable valuation for FY10 is provided below:

General Levy $  8.100
Debt Service Levy ’ 4.219
Employee Benefits Levy 3.637
Transit Levy 0.950
Liability Insurance Levy 0.420
Library Levy ' 0.270
Emergency Levy 0.257

Total City Levy $  17.853

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Towa City’s finances for all of those with
an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report,
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to City of Iowa City, Finance
Department, 410 E. Washington Street, lowa City, 1A, 52240.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Receivables:
Property tax
Accounts and unbilled usage
Interest
Notes
Internal balances
Due from other governments
Inventories
Restricted assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Accrued liabilities
Interest payable
Deposits
Due to other governments
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year:
Employee vested benefits
Bonds payable
Due in more than one year:
Employee vested benefits
Other Post Employment Benefits Obligation
Notes Payable
Bonds payable
Landfill closure/post-closure liability
Total liabilities

26

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
48,598 50,184 $ 98,77¢
46,251 - 46,251
1,018 3,301 4,31¢
410 851 1,261
13,748 1,349 15,097
(8,596) 8,596 -
7,755 740 8,49¢
536 401 937
16,871 33,956 50,827
31,788 31,986 63,774
135,54 222,418 357,96C
293,918 353,782 647,70C
1,643 785 2,42¢
1,026 870 1,89¢
3,795 437 4,23:
248 2,144 2,392
982 672 1,65¢
2,006 111 2,117
55,025 - 55,02!
1,087 278 1,36t
9,430 5,840 15,27(
943 232 1,17¢
465 202 667
211 - 211
71,792 86,353 158,14~
- 10,646 10,64¢€
148,653 108,570 257,22%

(continued)



CITY OF IOWA CITY, IODWA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (continued)

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for or by:
Employee benefits
Capital projects
Debt service
Other purposes
Bond ordinance
State statute
Future improvements
Grant agreement
Unrestricted

Total net assets

June 30, 2009

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
$ 100,741 162,211 $ 262,952
2,236 - 2,23t
10,960 - 10,96
11,759 - 11,75
65 - 6t
- 16,125 16,12t
- 802 80z
- 272 272
1,566 1,960 3,52¢
17,938 63,842 81,78C
$ 145,265 $ 245212 $ 390,477

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pahisftatement.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants anc
Functions/Programs: Expenses for Services Contributions Contributic
Governmental activities:
Public safety $ 20,730 $ 2,968 $ 1,723 $ 192
Public works 15,177 1,392 1,792 2,32¢
Culture and recreation 9,574 715 - -
Community and economic development 8,726 - 4,670 1,253
General government 7,600 1,626 - -
Interest on long-term debt 3,264 - -
Total governmental activities 65,071 6,701 8,185 3,773
Business-type activities:
Wastewater Treatment 11,925 12,557 1 26¢
Water 9,185 8,107 15 13z
Sanitation 7,296 8,286 607 -
Housing Authority 7,238 181 6,668 -
Parking 4,489 5,438 -
Airport 693 248 2 3,23¢
Stormwater 1,223 622 - 6¢
Cable television 633 788 - -
Total business-type activities 42,682 36,227 7,293 3,70%
Total $ 107,753 $ 42928 $ 15,478 $ 7,478

General revenues:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes

Road use tax
Hotel/motel tax

Gas and electric tax
Earnings on investments
Gain on disposal of capital assets

Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers
Changes in net assets
Net assets beginning of year
Net assets end of year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part ofttitisnsent.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
$ (15,847) - $ (15,84
(9,665) - (9,66¢
(8,859) - (8,85¢
(2,803) - (2,80
(5,974) - (5,97¢
(3,264) - (3,26¢
(46,412) - (46,41:
- 899 899
- (931) (931
- 1,597 1,597
- (389) (389
- 949 949
- 2,796 2,796
- (533) (533
- 155 155
- 4,543 4,543
(46,412) 4,543 (41,86¢
47,085 - 47,08!
5,254 - 5,25¢
713 - 71:
776 - 77¢€
3,057 2,577 5,634
- 360 360
4,894 317 5,211
205 (205) -
61,984 3,049 65,033
15,572 7,592 23,164
129,693 237,620 367,313
$ 145,265 245,212 $ 390,477
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Assett

Equity in pooled cash and investme
Receivable:

Property ta

Accounts and unbilled use

Interes

Notes
Advances to other fun
Due from other governmel
Inventorie:
Restricted asse

Equity in pooled cash and investm

Total asse

CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 20C
(amounts expressed in thousal

Special Revent

Community Othel
Developmer Share: Othel
Employer Block Revenue ar Debi Governmentz
Genere Benefite Gran Grantt Service Fund: Total

$ 16,71C  $ 2,09 $ 2 % 92t % 10,637 $ 122« $ 31,59(
24,94¢ 9,96¢ - - 11,30¢ 29 46,25
85¢ - - - - 16C 1,01¢
14& 17 - 13 65 42 282
10€ - 11,39 622 1,62 - 13,74¢
- - 18 - 21¢& - 23€
2,32 152 18 2,704 - 2,50z 7,70C
204 - - - - - 204
2,23 - - 4 - 14,63¢ 16,87
$ 4753( % 12,22¢  $ 11,42¢ 3 4,26t 3 23,85¢ 3 18,59: $ 117,90(
(continued
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

BALANCE SHEET (continued)
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 20C
(amounts expressed in thousal

Special Revent

Community Othe
Developmer Share: Othel
Employer Block Revenue ar Debi Government:
Genere Benefits Gran Grant: Service Fund: Total
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payab $ 1,006 $ 47  $ 13 % 14¢ 1 $ 15€ 1,382
Contracts payak - - - - - 1,02¢ 1,02¢
Accrued liabilitie 1,46( 2 7 11z - 51 1,63
Advances from other fun 1,50¢ 21¢ - - 1,72z
Due to other governmel 2 - - 41 - 1,96: 2,00¢
Deferred revent 26,66:¢ 9,941 11,40¢ 4,46¢ 12,08t 2,46t 67,02¢
Liabilities payable from restricted ass
Deposit 97¢ - - 4 - - 982
Total liabilities 31,618 9,99( 11,42¢ 4,98¢ 12,09¢ 5,661 75,77
Fund balance
Reserved fo
Inventorie 204 - - - - - 204
Encumbranci 24% - - 9 - 1,52¢ 1,78(
Debt servic - - - - 11,75¢ - 11,75¢
Employee retirement commitme - 2,23¢ - - - - 2,23¢
Perpetual ca 10¢ - - - - - 10¢
Restricted by grant agreerr - - - 1,56¢ - - 1,56¢
Unreserve
Undesignate
General fur 15,36: - - - - - 15,36:
Special revenue fur - - - (2,295 - 44% (1,852
Capital projects fun - - - - - 10,96( 10,96(
Total fund balanc 15,917 2,23¢ - (720 11,75¢ 12,93: 42,12:
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 47,530 12,226 $ 11,429 $ 4,268 $ 23,855 $ 18,592 $ 117,90C

The notes to the financial statements are an intgaaet of this statemer
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CITY OF IOWA CITY

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF THE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Total governmental fund balances $ 42,123

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs
of certain activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities
of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net assets. 20,401

Prepaid insurance benefits future periods and is included in
governmental activities in the statement of net assets. -

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds:
Notes receivable - Earned but unavailable 12,001

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 161

Accrued compensated absences are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (1,

Accrued post employment benefit obligations are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported
in the funds. 477)

Bonds payable are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds. (81,222)

Notes payable are not due and payable in the current period

and therefore are not reported in the funds. (212)
Accrued interest on bonds (248)
Internal balance due to integration of internal service funds (7,

Total net assets of governmental activities $ 145,265

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Special Revenue

Community Othel
Developmer Share: Othel
Employet Block Revenue ar Debr Government:
Genere Benefits Gran Grantt Service Fund: Total
Revenue
Taxe: $ 24,73.  $ 9,06¢ $ -8 -0 % 11,08 $ 3,68t $ 48,57:
Licenses and perm 1,28¢ - - - - - 1,28¢
Intergovernment 5,761 - 1,38¢ 9,801 - 2,57 19,52:
Charges for servic 2,231 20C - 61 - - 2,49¢
Use of money and prope 1,815 - - 81 447 30C 2,64t
Miscellaneou 4,46¢ 5 284 75 38< 87 5,30z
Total revenue 40,29¢ 9,27¢ 1,67( 10,01¢ 11,91« 6,64¢ 79,82:
Expenditures
Current
Public safet 17,95¢ 24¢ - - - 547 18,75:
Public work 6,497 - - 4,76¢ - 1,14C 12,40¢
Culture and recreati 10,64+« - - - - 20t 10,84¢
Community and economic developn 1,08z - 1,612 3,65¢ - 1,68¢ 8,031
General governme 6,84¢ 30¢€ - - 75 73 7,30C
Debt service
Principa - - - - 8,41¢ - 8,41¢
Interest - - - - 3,36¢ - 3,36¢
Capital outla 4,22F - 16 3,36¢ - 9,48¢ 17,09¢
Total expenditurt 47,25( 55¢ 1,62¢ 11,79¢ 11,857 13,13t 86,22
Excess (deficiency) of revenues ¢
(under) expenditur (6,952 8,71¢ 42 (1,778 57 (6,487 (6,399
Other Financing Sources (Use
Issuance of de - - - - - 7,19 7,19(
Issuance of refunding d¢ - - - - 22,84¢ - 22,84!
Sale of capital asst 194 - - - - 36C 554
Premium on issuance of bol - - - - 39¢ 15¢ 552
Payment of refunded bor - - - - (23,140 - (23,140
Transfers i 8,66( - - 434 2,91 4,47¢ 16,48t
Transfers ot (919 (8,224 (50) (1,497 - (5,696 (16,386
Total other financing sources and (u 7,93t (8,224 (50) (1,063 3,011 6,492 8,101
Net change in fund balan: 98¢ 49E (8) (2,841 3,06¢ 5 1,70z
Fund Balances, Beginnin 14,93« 1,741 8 2,121 8,691 12,92¢ 40,42
Fund Balances, Endini $ 15,917 $ 2,236 $ -3 (720 $ 11,75¢  $ 12,93 $ 42,12:

The notes to the financial statements are an iatgoart of this statemer
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CITY OF IOWA CITY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEND ITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental $ 1,70z

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the staterof activitie
are different becau:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditunéds government.
activities report depreciation expense to allocate thqeeneitures over ti
life of the asset. Capital outlays and contributed capisatsexceede
depreciation expense in the current year as fol

Expenditures for capital as: $ 16,87¢
Capital assets contribu 204
Depreciation exper (5,488 11,59t

Bond proceeds are reported as other financing sourcesemgoental func
and thus contribute to the change in fund balance. In thenstatef ne
assets, however, issuing debt increases long-term liebiitid does not affi
the statement of activities. Similarly, repayment of prialdipan expenditure i
the governmental funds but reduces the liability in therstant of net asse

Debt issue (30,035
Premium on bonds iss! (552
Repayments of de 31,55¢
Amortization of premiu 75 1,04¢

The issuance of notes payable are reported as financirgesonrgovernment
funds and thus contribute to the change in fund balance. $tateenent c
net assets, however, issuing notes increases long-terlitidiglaind does n
affect the statement of activitie -

Because some revenues will not be collected for severahmafier th
City's year end, they are not considered available revender@deferre
in the governmental func 2,58¢

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities dequite th
use of current financial resources and therefore are rotedms
expenditures in governmental fur

Change in accrued compensated abs (53)
Change in accrued post employment benefit oblig: 4arr,
Change in accrued interest on 25
Impairment of capital ass (179,

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale afapital assets
recognized, whereas in the governmental funds, the proceedshie sal
increased financial resources. Thus, the change in net disttsfrom the
change in fund balance by the cost of the capital asse (1,223

Prepaid items in the governmental funds have been rec

as expenditures when paid. However, the statement of astiwitil repor

these items as expenses in the period that the correspoetliasset

exhauster 9)
Internal service funds are used by management to chargestk

of certain activities to individual funds. The net revenueeofain activities ¢
internal service funds is reported with governmental iéies 561

Change in net assets of governmental acti $ 1557

The notes to the financial statements are an iaggart of this statement.

35



Assets
Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts and unbilled usage
Interest
Notes
Advances to other funds
Due from other governments
Inventories
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Capital assets:
Land
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Accumulated depreciation
Construction in progress
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmenta
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Other Internal
Wastewater Housing Enterprise Service
Parking  Treatment Water Sanitation Authority  Funds Total Funds

$ 4,51% 11,704 $ 12,132 $ 15845 $ 3,409 $ 2,583 $ 50,184 $ 17,005

35 1,255 805 957 5 244 3,301 -

93 188 290 207 54 19 851 128

- - - 5 1,344 - 1,349 -

- - - 5,253 - - 5,253 -

- 22 15 27 52 624 740 55

- - 401 - - - 401 332

4,639 13,169 13,643 22,294 4,864 3,470 62,079 17,520
2,211 12,544 4,272 12,849 1,960 120 33,956 -

6,798 695 6,296 1,787 726 9,480 25,782 45

24,908 59,485 23,461 999 5,869 4,304 119,026 831

166 7,365 2,331 121 9 357 10,349 50

446 9,909 10,433 153 122 635 21,698 13,163

- 86,797 47,104 10,873 - 41,146 185,920 1,006

(13,368) (58,672) (18,975) (8,981) (3,525) (11,054) (114,575) (9,884,

567 165 782 1,107 - 3,583 6,204 199

21,728 118,288 75,704 18,908 5,161 48,571 288,360 5,410

26,367 131,457 89,347 41,202 10,025 52,041 350,439 22,930

(continued)
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Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other governments
Interest payable

Bonded debt payable (net of unamortized discounts)

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Deposits
Advances from other funds

Bonded debt payable (net of unamortized discounts)

Other Post Employment Benefits Obligation
Landfill closure/postclosure liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted by bond ordinance

Restricted by state statute

Restricted for future improvements
Restricted by grant agreement

Unrestricted

Total net asse

CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Adjustment to eefi the consolidation of internal service fund activities

related to eptise funds.

Net assets ofibess-type activitie

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this satem
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Governmenta
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Other Internal

Wastewater Housing Enterprise Service
Parking  Treatment Water Sanitation Authority  Funds Total Funds
$ 36 % 133 $ 178 $ 141 $ 27 $ 270 % 785 $ 261
5 - 53 221 - 591 870 -
158 170 243 234 81 61 947 2,280

- - 34 64 13 - 111 -

287 1,249 608 - - - 2,144 -
386 4,195 1,259 - - - 5,840 -

872 5,747 2,375 660 121 922 10,697 2,541

2 - 415 13 233 9 672 -
2,450 - - - 18 1,299 3,767 -
9,21150,775 26,367 - - - 86,353 -
32 40 49 53 15 13 202 1z

- - - 10,646 - - 10,646 -
11,695 50,815 26,831 10,712 266 1,321 101,640 (12)
12,567 56,562 29,206 11,372 387 2,243 112,337 2,529
9,92050,774 43,806 6,059 3,201 48,451 162,211 5,410

1,651 11,295 3,179 - - - 16,125 -

- - - 802 - - 802 -

272 - - - - - 272 -

- - - - 1,960 - 1,960 -
1,957 12,826 13,156 22,969 4,477 1,347 56,732 14,991
$13,80( $74,89 $ 60,14: $ 29,83( $9,63¢ $49,79¢ 238,10. $ 20,40:

7,110
$ 245,21,
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Government:
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Other Internal
Wastewater Housing Enterprise Service
Parking Treatment Water Sanitation Authority  Funds Total daun
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services $ 5,438%$12,557 $ 8,107 $ 8,286 $ 181 $ 1,658 $ 36,227 $ 15,472
Miscellaneous 4 84 86 58 53 32 317 17
Total operating revenues 5,442 12,641 8,193 8,344 234 1,690 36,544 15,489
Operating Expenses:
Personal services 1,845 1,848 2,316 2,363 927 695 9,994 2,010
Commodities 196 853 768 375 55 249 2,496 2,261
Services and charges 983 2,501 2,642 4,160 6,096 445 16,827 9,895
3,024 5,202 5,726 6,898 7,078 1,389 29,317 14,166
Depreciation 871 4,155 2,124 592 157 1,156 9,055 1,131
Total operating expenses 3,895 9,357 7,850 7,490 7,235 2,545 38,372 15,297
Operating income (loss) 1,547 3,284 343 854 (7,001) (855) (1,828) 192
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Gain on disposal of capital assets 214 131 - - 15 - 360 44
Operating grants - 1 15 607 6,668 2 7,293 -
Interest income 188 820 625 682 205 57 2,577 413
Interest expense (578) (2,578) (1,351) - - - (4,507) -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (176)1,626) (711) 1,289 6,888 59 5,723 457
Income (loss) before capital contributions
and transfers 1,371 1,658 (368) 2,143 (113) (796) 3,895 649
Capital contributions - 266 132 - - 3,307 3,705 4
Transfers in - 148 469 - 50 515 1,182 277
Transfers out (205) (296) (698) (104) - (197) (1,500) (59)
Change in net assets 1,166 1,776 (465) 2,039 (63) 2,829 7,282 871
Net Assets, Beginning 12,634 73,119 60,606 27,791 9,701 46,969 19,530
Net Assets, Endin $13,800 $74,895 $60,141 $29,830 $ 9,638 $49,798 $ 20,401
Adjustment &dlect the consolidation of internal service furthaties
related tdeprise funds. 310
Change in netets of business-type activities $ 7,592

The notes to the financial statements are an intquag of this statement.
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Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Grants received
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Repayment/(payment) of notes receivable
Advances from other funds
Advances to other funds
Net cash flows from noncapital financing acdtes

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing
Activities
Capital grants received
Acquisition and construction of property and
equipment
Proceeds from sale of property
Proceeds from issuance of refunding debt (praicip
plus premium & less discount)
Principal paid on bonded debt
Interest paid on bonded debt
Net cash flows from capital and related finagci

activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest on investments

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cashedepiis
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending

CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmenta
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Other Internal
Wastewater Housing Enterprise Service
Parking Treatment Water Sanitation  Authority Funds Total unds

$ 553 12,694 $ 8,240 $ 8,738 $ 231 $ 1,701 $37,135 $ 15,606
(1,181) (3,322) (3,612) (4,081) (6,204) (659) (19,059) (12,708;
(1,786) (1,772)  (2,231) (2,292) (902) (692)  (9,675) (1,906
2,564 7,600 2,397 2,365 (6,875) 350 8,401 992

- - - 609 6,644 - 7,253 -

- 138 469 - 50 515 1,172 277

(205) (296) (698) (94) - (197)  (1,490) (59)
170 - - 4 39 - 213 -

(600) - - - - 94 (506) -

- - - 721 - - 721 -

(635) (158) (229) 1,240 6,733 412 7,363 218

- - - - - 3,249 3,249 -
(636) (157) (634) (351) (289) (3,909) (5,976) (1,002,
484 131 - - 58 6 679 55

- 33,636 17,004 - - - 50,640 -

(370) (38,645) (18,893) - - - (57,908) -

(584) (2,813) (1,352) - - - (4,749) -
(1,106) (7,848)  (3,875) (351) (231) (654) (14,065) (947)
149 1,411 561 693 200 73 3,087 428
972 1,005  (1,146) 3,947 (173) 181 4,786 691
5,750 23,243 17,550 24,747 5,542 2,522 79,354 16,314
$ 6,722 $ 24248 $16,404 $ 28694 $ 5369 $ 2,703 $84,140 $ 17,005

(continued)
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Other Internal
Wastewater Housing Enterprise Service
Parking Treatment Water Sanitation Authority Funds Total Funds
Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 1547% 3284 $ 343 $ 854 $ (7,001) $ (855) $ (1.,828) $ 192
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash flows from operating activities:
Depreciation expense 871 4,155 2,124 592 157 1,156 9,055 1,131
Changes in:
Receivables:
Accounts and unbilled usage 93 55 42 379 Q) 12 580 3
Due from other governments - 2) 1 13 4 - 16 114
Inventories - - (37) - - - (37) (11)
Accounts payable 2) 32 a77) (84) (56) 35 (252) (541)
Accrued liabilities 27 36 36 18 10 (10) 117 116
Due to other governments - - 12 (20) 3 - 5 -
Deposits (4) - 4 2 (6) Q) (5) -
Other Post Employment Benefits
Obligation 32 40 49 53 15 13 202 (12)
Landfill closure/postclosure liability - - - 548 - - 548 -
Total adjustments 1,017 4,316 2,054 1,511 126 1,205 10,229 800
Net cash flows from operating activities $ 25645 7,600 $ 2,397 $ 2365 $ (6875 $ 350 $ 8,401 $ 992
Noncash Investing, Capital, and
Financing Activities:
Contributions of capital assets from
government and others $ -$ 247 $ 132 % - % - $ 68 $ 447 % 4

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of thenséat.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Agency
Funds
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 234
Accounts receivab 6
Interest receivab 2
Total asse $ 242
Liabilities
Accrued liabilities $ 10
Due to agenc 232
Total liabilities $ 242

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pahisftatement.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

1. Accounting Policies

The City of lowa City, lowa, (the City) was incorpted April 6, 1853, and operates under
Council/Manager form of government. The City prowda broad range of services to its citiz
including general government, a mass transportagy@tem, public safety, streets, parks, and cul
facilities. It also operates an airport, parking lities, water treatment, wastewater treatment, st@tax
collection, sanitation collection and disposal (itthg landfill operations), cable television, an
housing authority.

The financial statements of the City have been amexp in conformity with accounting principl
generally accepted in the United States of Ame(i@AAP) as applied to governmental units. -
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) he taccepted standard-setting body
establishing governmental accounting and finanejpbrting principles. The more significant accougy
policies of the City are described below.

The Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the City includdk of its funds, organizations, agencies, boe
commissions, and authorities. The City has also densd all potential component units for which i
financially accountable, and other organizationsaibich the nature and significance of their relatign:
with the City are such that exclusion would cause €ity's financial statements to be misleading
incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standardard@dias set forth criteria to be considere
determining financial accountability. These critefilaclude appointing a voting majority of .
organization’s governing body, and (1) the abilityle City to impose its will on that organization(@)
the potential for the organization to provide spiedienefits to, or impose specific financial burdemm
the City. There were no component units required to be iedlud

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the&te®hent of Net Assets and the Statemer
Activities) report information on all of the nonfidiary activities of the primary governme
Governmental activitieswhich normally are supported by taxes and inteegowmental revenues, ¢
reported separately frobusiness-type activitiegvhich rely to a significant extent on fees and charge
support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the detgreehich the direct expenses of a given functio
segment are offset by program revenugigsect expensesre those that are clearly identifiable witl
specific function or segmenProgram revenuesnclude 1) charges to customers or applicants
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, sesyioe privileges provided by a given function
segment and 2) grants and contributions that as&riceed to meeting the operational or caf
requirements of a particular function or segmentxeBaand other items not properly included arr
program revenues are reportecdjaseral revenues

As a general rule, the effect of interfund actiigs been eliminated from the government-wide firei
statements. Exceptions to this general rule aregekanetween the City’s water and sewer function
various other functions of the government. Elimioasi of these charges would distort the direct ¢
and program revenues reported for the various functiomsecoed.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

June 30, 2009

Separate financial statements are provided for mowental funds and proprietary funds. Ma
individual governmental funds and major individeakerprise funds are reported as separate colum
the fund financial statements.

Description of Funds

These financial statements include all funds owned oirastered by the City or for which the City act
as custodian.

The City maintains its records on a modified caabid of accounting under which only cash recei
cash disbursements and encumbrances, investmedtbpaded debt are recorded. These modified «
basis accounting records have been adjusted tadtwial or modified accrual basis, as necessar
prepare the accompanying financial statements in danoe with GAAP.

The accounts of the City are organized on the hmdisnds, each of which is considered to be a stp:
accounting entity. The fund categories are govermahemroprietary, and fiduciary. Each fund
accounted for by providing a separate set of sahicing accounts that comprise its assets, ligsii
net assets, revenues, and expenditures or expensgsprapriate. The individual funds account for
governmental resources allocated to them for thpgae of carrying on specific activities in accorda
with laws, regulations, or other restrictions.

Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatmendliad to a fund is determined by its “measurem
focus.” The government-wide financial statements pragbrietary funds are accounted for on the flow
economic resources measurement foand use the accrual basis of accounting. Agencysfulodnot
have a measurement focus and use the accrualdfesmisounting. Under the accrual method, rever
are recorded when earned and expenses are re@irttegltime liabilities are incurred. The City appl
all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Boarmahouncements issued on or before Novembel
1989, except those that conflict with GASB pronouncemem@&cdounting and reporting for these func

All governmental funds are accounted for using e financial resources measurement focus, w
generally includes only current assets and cudiabilities on the balance sheet. The modified aak
basis of accounting is used for these funds. Utldemodified accrual basis, revenue is recognizeev
susceptible to accrual, which is in the period irichit becomes both available (collectible withivet
current period or soon thereafter to be used toliphjlities of the current period) and measurafhe
amount of the transaction can be determined). Re&vemagcrued includes property tax
intergovernmental revenue, and interest earnedwastments (if they are collected within 60 daysra
the year-end). Expenditures are recorded when tagdefund liability is incurred. Principal and intst
on long-term debt, as well as expenditures relatecbmpensated absences and claims and judgn
are recorded only when payment is due.

The City reports the following major governmental funds

The General Funds the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts &l financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be aeddion in another fund.
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The Employee Benefits Fund used to account for the employee benefits relate those
employees who are paid through governmental fupesy which are funded by a separate
property tax levy.

The Community Development Block Grant Fuaxtounts for revenue from the U.S. Departmen
of Housing and Urban Development’'s Community DevelopmémtiBGrant programs.

The Other Shared Revenue and Grants Fumctounts for revenue from various sources,
primarily road use tax monies from the State ofdoand reimbursable programs funded by
federal and state grants.

TheDebt Service Fundccounts for the accumulation of resources for andaiment of general
long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Parking Fundis used to account for the operation and maintemari the “on” and “off”
street public parking facilities.

The Wastewater Treatment Furid used to account for the operation and maintamani the
wastewater treatment facility and sanitary sewer system.

TheWater Funds used to account for the operation and maintenanite afater system.

The Sanitation Fundis used to account for the operation and maintemarfidhe solid waste
collection system and landfill.

TheHousing Authority Funds used to account for the operations and actévitfethe City’s low
and moderate income housing assistance and public housmrgms.

Additionally, the City reports internal service funtb account for goods and services provided by
department to other City departments on a costh@isement basis. The funds in this category ar:
Equipment Maintenance Fund, Central Services FundssLBeserve Fundand the Information
Technology Fund.

The City also reports fiduciary funds which are duse account for resources held for the benef
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds raoe reflected in the government-wide finan
statement because the resources of those fund®awailable to support the City’'s own programse
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much likettlused for proprietary funds. The City has

fiduciary funds which are maintained as agency funds, vaithttempt to create an ongoing fund balai

Proprietary funds distinguisbperating revenues and expenses framnoperatingitems. Operatin
revenues and expenses generally result from prayigérvices and producing and delivering gooc
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongp operations. The principal operating revenue
the City’s enterprise funds and of the City’s imi@rservice funds are charges to customers fos sale
services. Operating expenses for enterprise fundsraernal service funds include the cost of saled
services, administrative expenses, and depreciatioigapital assets. All revenues and expense:
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperatiagmaes and expenses.
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When both restricted and unrestricted resourceaxaitable for use, it is the government’s policyuse
restricted resources first, then unrestricted reso@sdisey are needed.

Uses of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformiityn accounting principles generally accepted in
United States of America requires management toemedtimates and assumptions that affect
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andalisce of contingent assets and liabilities atdhte of
the financial statements and the reported amoudnsvenue, expenditures and expenses, as approj
during the reporting period. Actual results coultfedifrom these estimates. Material estimates tha
particularly susceptible to significant change e tnear-term relate to the determination of lah
closure and post-closure care costs, total capatitye landfill at closure, and calculation of t@sts of
claims incurred, but not reported.

Cash and Investments

The City maintains one primary demand deposit accthvough which the majority of its cash resoul
are processed. Substantially all investment actigigarried on by the City in an investment pookempt
for those funds required to maintain their invesitaeseparately. The earnings on the pooled invessr
are allocated to the funds on a systematic baslsn¥éstments are stated at fair value except el
lowa Public Agency Investment Trust (IPAIT) whichvalued at amortized cost pursuant to Rule
under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flowsjatest and nonrestricted investments with a mat
of three months or less when purchased are considereéaaishlents.

Receivables and Revenue Recognition

Property tax receivable is recognized in governmental$ on the levy or lien date, which is the date
the tax asking is certified by the City to the ChuBoard of Supervisors. Current year delingt
property tax receivable represents unpaid taxes fie current year. The succeeding year propert
receivable represents taxes certified by the @itlgd collected in the next fiscal year for the jpses se
out in the budget for the next fiscal year. By statute, thei€itgquired to certify its budget to the Cou
Auditor by March 15 of each year for the subseqdisntl year. However, by statute, the tax asking
budget certification for the following fiscal yebecomes effective on the first day of that yearh@éuigh
the succeeding year property tax receivable has t®rded, the related revenue is deferred in that
government-wide and fund financial statements ailldnet be recognized as revenue until the yeal
which it is levied.

Federal and state grants are recorded as recedvabtkthe revenue is recognized during the peric
which the City fulfills the requirements for recigig the grant awards, as long as the susceptik
accrual criteria are met.

Income from investments in all fund types and froharges for services in proprietary fund type
recognized when earned. Licenses and permits, findsfafeitures, fees and refunds, charges
services (in governmental fund types), miscellaneaod other revenues are recorded as revenue
received in cash because they are generally not measurdiblectually received.
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Inventories

Inventories are recognized only in those funds Hictv they are material to the extent of affec
operations. For the City, these are the General Fund, Watey Bnd the Equipment Maintenance Fur
Inventories are reported at the lower of costtfinsfirst-out) or market. The costs of governmeiffitad
type inventories are recorded as expenditures whengmedh

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, buildings,iggent, and infrastructure assets (e.g., rc
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reportedhe applicable governmental or business-
activities columns in the government-wide financihtements. The City follows the policy of |
capitalizing an asset with an initial, individualstaf less than $50,000 for infrastructure assets
$5,000 for remaining assets. Such assets are recatdeijinal purchase cost or at fair value atdage
of donation when received as donated properties.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line methed the following estimated useful lives:

Infrastructure 3 -100 years
Buildings and structures 20 — 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 15 — 50 years
Vehicles 2 — 20 years
Other equipment 5 - 30 years

Bond Premiums and Discounts

Debt issued at a premium or discount is recordedohéhe unamortized premium or discount. In
governmental funds, premiums and discounts are dedoentirely as other financing sources or ust
the year of issuance. In the proprietary funds dedgovernment-wide statements, they are amor
over the life of the bonds.

Compensated Absences

Permanent City employees accumulate vacation akdesave hours for subsequent use or for payi
upon death, resignation, or retirement. The City pesysmployees (except firefighters) one-half of
accumulated sick leave at the time of terminatiantlte basis of the employee’s then effective hc
base salary, provided that the dollar amount of thenent may be up to, but not exceed, the amoun
an employee would be paid if the employee had terminatedren2B, 1985. Employees hired on or &
June 29, 1985, are not eligible for payment of acdated sick leave upon termination, death.
retirement.

Pensions

The provision for pension cost is recorded on tlkerwml basis (based on statutorily determi
contribution rates), and the City’s policy is to fund pen<osts as they accrue.
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Landfill Closing Costs

Costs expected to be incurred in ultimately closing present landfill site are being systematic
provided for through charges to expense over thienated useful life of the landfill on the basis
capacity used (see Note 7).

Budgetary and Legal Appropriation and Amendment Policies

The City prepares and adopts an annual functiomgdtychs prescribed by lowa statutes, for all fu
except internal service and agency funds. Thisrimdtized in a separate budgetary report, the Fiah
Plan. This budget is adopted on or before Marchofi'®ach year to become effective July 1,
constitutes the City’s appropriation for each pamgrand purpose specified therein until amended.
adopted budget must include the following:

a. Expenditures for each function:

Public safety

Public works

Health and social services

Culture and recreation

Community and economic development

General government

Debt service

Capital outlay

Business-type
b. The amount to be raised by property taxation
c. Income from sources other than property taxation
d. Transfers in and transfers out

The legal level of control (the level at which ergddures may not legally exceed appropriationghé&
function level for all funds combined, rather tharthe individual fund level. Management can tran
appropriations within a function, within a fund typend between fund types, without the approval o
governing body so long as the total budget by fioncarea will not be exceeded. It is necess
therefore, to aggregate the expenditures of the diedgactivities within the governmental fund ty
with the expenditures of the budgeted activitiethini the enterprise funds on a function basis, ar
compare such function totals to function budgetsdls in order to demonstrate legal compliance
the budget. The City’s budget for revenue focusesthan individual fund revenue rather than
aggregated fund totals.

The City formally adopts budgets for several futigd are not required by state law to be includethé
annual function budget. Annual operating budgets adlepted for the internal service funds
management control purposes. Such budgets, howeegenpategally required to be adopted under ¢
statutes. These budgets are adopted and amendwe sstnhe time and in the same manner as the (
annual function budget.
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A City budget for the current fiscal year may beeadted for any of the following purposes as presct
by lowa statute:

a. To permit the appropriation and expenditure @xpended, unencumbered cash balances on h
the end of the preceding fiscal year.

b. To permit the appropriation and expenditure obants anticipated being available from soul
other than property taxation.

c. To permit transfers between funds.

d. To permit transfers between programs.

A budget amendment must be prepared and adopted in thereamer as the original budget. The Cil
budget was amended as prescribed, and the effeties# amendments are shown in the accompa
budgetary comparison schedule. The original budget imcreased by $205,700,000 in revenues
other financing sources and by $219,660,000 in expeed and other financing uses. Appropriation
adopted or amended, and not encumbered, lapse at the éedistal year.

As allowed by GASB Statement No. 41, Budgetary CoisparSchedules — Perspective Differences
City presents budgetary comparison schedules asireglgsupplementary information based on
program structure of nine functional areas as requiresidig statute for its legally adopted budget.

Restricted Assets

Assets within the individual funds, which can beigeated by the City Council for any use within
fund’s purpose, are considered to be unrestrictegt®isAssets, which are restricted for specific bt
bonded debt requirements, grant provisions, orrotbguirements, are classified as restricted as
Liabilities, which are payable from restricted assets, lassified as such.

2. Compliance and Accountability

At June 30, 2009 the Capital Project Fund for bridgeeet, and traffic control construction reporte
deficit fund balance of $1,883,000. The deficit i do capital expenditures. The City anticip:
receiving funds from the lowa Department of Tramdon. If not, bonds will be issued in 2010
cover the capital expenditures. At June 30, 20090ther Shared Revenue and Grants Fund repol
deficit balance of $720,000. The deficit is dueltmd expenditures related to home buyouts and ¢
payment assistance. The City will be receiving &rftbom the lowa Department of Econor
Development and the lowa Finance Authority to cover teapenditures.

3. Cash and Pooled Investments
The City’s deposits in banks at June 30, 2009 wetgety covered by federal depository insurar
national credit union administration, or by the &t8inking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C e

Code of lowa. This chapter provides for additiocasdessments against the depositories to insure
will be no loss of public funds.
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The City is authorized by statute to invest publieds in obligations of the United States governmigs
agencies and instrumentalities; certificates ofodé@por other evidences of deposit at federallyiad
lowa depository institutions approved by City Coilaad secured pursuant to the limitations sethfami
Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa; prime eligible s acceptances; certain high rated comme
paper; perfected repurchase agreements; lowa Public A¢mrestment Trust (IPAIT); certain registel
open—end management investment companies regisietiedhe Securities & Exchange Commiss
under the federal Investment Company Act of 194fifain joint investment trusts; and warrants
improvement certificates of a drainage district.

Investments are stated at fair value. In additibe, €ity had investments in the lowa Public Age
Investment Trust, which are valued at an amortized of $31,170,349 pursuant to Rule 2a-7 unde
Investment Company Act of 1940.

Interest rate risk. The City’s investment poliayilis the investment of general and operating futoc
one year, unless a temporary extension of matsirigsi@pproved by the City Council. In such cases
average maturity of each fund’'s portfolio shall eateed 397 days. Funds not identified as oper
funds may be invested in instruments whose maturities dexaetd five years at the time of purchas

Credit risk. State law limits investments to comondrpaper and corporate bonds to the top twoga
issued by nationally recognized statistical ratorganizations. It is the City's policy to complytiv
rating restrictions. The investment in lowa Pulfligency Investment Trust is not rated by Mooc
Investors service as it is a state security thabasked by the full faith and credit of the issu
government and is not subject to credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk. The City investmentigy limits the amount that may be invested in
one issuer to a maximum amount approved by the City Council.

The aforementioned lowa Public Agency InvestmentsT(IPAIT) represents an investment in a
managed by others. IPAIT is a common trust estaddisunder lowa law pursuant to lowa Code Che
28E in 1987 to enable eligible lowa public agendessafely and effectively invest their availa
operating and reserve funds. IPAIT is registered unddntiestment Company Act of 1940.

The IPAIT portfolios have followed established mgnmarket mutual fund investment parame
designed to maintain a $1 per unit net asset \&@hee inception and were registered with the Stes
and Exchange Commission (SEC).

Due to legal and budgetary reasons, the general iuadsigned a portion of the investment earn

associated with other funds. These funds are th@ogee benefits, other shared revenue, and sani
funds.
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4. Interfund Balances and Transfers

Interfund balances for the year ended June 30, 2009, tmhsisthe following:

Advances from

Community

Development Debt

Block Grant Service Sanitation Total
Advances to:
General $ - $ - $ 1,503,545 $ 1,503,545
Other Shared Revenue

and Grants - 218,275 - 218,275

Parking - - 2,450,183 2,450,183
Housing Authority 18,000 - 18,000
Nonmajor enterprise - 1,299,238 1,299,23¢
Total $ 18,000 $ 218,275 $ 5,252,966 $ 5,489,241

Interfund balances at June 30, 2009, include advaheedo/from other funds. Advances to/from ol
funds represent amounts for construction loansland. $1,275,068 of the $1,299,238 advances t
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds and $2,370,821 of the $2183 advance to the Parking Fund are
expected to be repaid within the next year. $1,28¥ @& the $1,503,545 advances to the General
and $207,973 of the $218,275 advance to the Othee&lRevenue and Grants Fund are not expect
be repaid within the next year. None of the $18,880ance to Housing Authority is expected to
repaid within the next year.
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Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2009isted®f the following:

Transfer to:

General
Debt service

Other shared revenue and grants

Nonmajor governmental
Wastewater treatment
Water

Housing Authority
Nonmajor enterprise
Internal Service

Total Transfer to

Transfer from

Other
Community Shared

Employee Development Revenue and Nonmajo
General Benefits Block Grant Grants Governmer

$ - $ 7,887,662 $ - $ 59,986 $ -
93,584 - - 63,262 2,727,40
3,826 336,262 - - 93,798
359,191 - - 1,327,269 2,136,03
137,774 - - - -
110,542 - - - 352,236

- - 49,525 - -
128,115 - - - 386,861

86,234 - - 46,021 -

$ 919,266 $ 8,223,924 $ 49,525 $ 1,496,538 $ 5,696,332
(continued

Transfers are used to move revenues and bond plodeen the fund that State statutes or the bu
requires to collect them to the fund that the State statutthe budget requires to expend them.
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Transfer from

Wastewater Nonmajor Internal Total
Parking Treatment Water Sanitation Enterprise Service n&fea from

$ 200,000 $ 171,757 172,796  $ - $ 168,264 $ - $  8,660,46E
- - - - 28,486 - 2,912,734

- - - - - - 433,886

- 124,684 477,000 2,734 - 52,425 4,479,338

- - - 9,902 - 53 147,729

- - - - - 6,274 469,052

- - - - - 137 49,662

- - - - - - 514,976

5,250 - 47,895 91,731 - - 277,131

$ 205,250 $ 296,441 697691 $ 104367 $ 196,750 $ 58,889 $ 17,944,973
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Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2089 as follows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, ne$

Beginning Acquisitions Disposals an Balance  June
July 1, 2008 and Transfe Transfers 30, 2009
$ 15481,745 % 2,313,900 $ 312,739 $ 17,482,906
11,994,137 10,864,242 8,552,811 14,305,568
278875, 13,178,142 8,865,550 31,788,474
58,816,250 3,378,859 913,848 61,281,261
5,207,991 228,574 91,267 5,345,298
35,799,591 3,224,628 1,785,874 37,238,345
90,713,853 6,628,384 97,342,23i
190,537,685 13,460,445 2,790,989 201,207,141
15,171,558 1,532,381 396,221 16,307,718
1,471,948 205,590 53,035 1,624,503
23,380,199 2,714,174 1,245,002 24,849,371
20,717,043 2,166,869 22,883,912
60,740,748 6,619,014 1,694,258 65,665,504
123396 6,841,431 1,096,731 135,541,637
1578¢a%2, $ 20,019,573 $ 9,962,281 $ 167,330,111

54



CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

June 30, 2009

Beginning Acquisitions Disposals an Balance  June
July 1, 2008 and Transfe Transfers 30, 2009
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 25920593 $ 55,000 $ 192,460 $ 25,783,133
Construction in progress 10,799,218 5,033,111 9,627,643 6,204,686
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 363119, 5,088,111 9,820,103 31,987,819
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 118,764,725 526,480 265,173 119,026,032
Improvements other than buildings 10,412,335 - 63,893 10,348,442
Machinery and equipment 21,511,385 247,791 60,122 21,699,054
Infrastructure 175,345,529 11,193,401 618,153 185,920,777
Total capital assets being depreciated 326,033,974 11,967,672 1,007,341 336,994,305
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 41,061,815 3,217,870 120,240 44,159,445
Improvements other than buildings 2,745,777 433,605 63,893 3,115,489
Machinery and equipment 11,207,464 1,271,241 44,442 12,434,263
Infrastructure 50,703,898 4,164,367 - 54,868,26%
Total accumulated depreciation 105,718,954 9,087,083 228,575 114,577,462
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 220205 2,880,589 778,766 222,416,843
Business-type activities capital assets, ne$ 257934 $ 7,968,700 $ 10,598,869 $ 254,404,662
Depreciation expense was charged to functions| ks
Governmental activities:
Public safety $ 586,320
Public works 2,719,122
Culture and recreation 1,875,677
Community and economic development 37,060
General government 269,897
Internal service funds 1,130,938
Total depreciation expense - governmental actiitie $ 6,619,014
Business-type activities:
Parking $ 871,351
Wastewater treatment 4,154,961
Water 2,123,530
Sanitation 591,679
Housing authority 156,690
Nonmajor enterprise 1,155,537
Total depreciation expense - business-type ad#viti $ 9,053,748
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As a result from last year’s flood to the lowa River it wateideined that the City had multiple assets
were impaired and recorded a total impairment &fs$820,510. The total amount of impairment
calculated from the following funds: Governmendattivities $178,562, Water $618,153, and Se
$23,795. As of June 30th, 2009, the carrying valudefimpaired assets is $2,102,950. As a resu
City did receive insurance proceeds and are brakeras follows: Governmental Activities $33,6
Water $156,078, and Sewer $155,039.
6. Long Term Debt
Changes in Debt for Bonds

Bond debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2009, wasdlaw$:

Due Within
July 1, 2008 Issues Retirements June 30, 2009 One Y¢
Governmental activitie
General obligation bon $ 82,177,39* $30,035,00( $31,558,23* $ 80,654,16( $ 9,354,53¢
Plus: Unamortize
Premiumrr 91,13 551,52! 74,28 568,37: 74,28¢
$ 82,268,53: $30,586,52" $31,632,52: $ 81,222,53. $ 9,428,82"
Business-type activitie
General obligation bon $ 4,912,600 $ - $ 571,768 $ 4,340,84( $ 590,46
Less: Unamortize
Discounts 26,895 3,842 23,053 3,842
Total general obligation bor 4,885,71( 567,92: 4,317,778 586,62(
Revenue bon 95,345,00( 49,805,000 57,335,00( 87,815,00( 5,275,00(
Less: Unamortize
Discounts (Premiur 795,61 (834,87 21,59! (60,85t 21,59
Total revenue bon 94,549,38! 50,639,87: 57,313,40! 87,875,85! 5,253,40¢
$ 99,435,09¢ $50,639,87: $57,881,32¢t $ 92,193,64. $ 5,840,02!

General Obligation Bonds

Various issues of general obligation bonds tota#i8g,995,000 are outstanding as of June 30, 200¢
bonds have interest rates ranging from 1.5% to 56@a@ature in varying annual amounts ranging f
$90,000 to $2,195,000 per issue, with the final migridue in the year ending June 30, 2023. Int:
and principal payments on all general obligatiomdsy except tax abated portions recorded in
enterprise funds, are accounted for through the Debicgdrund.

Portions of several general obligation bond iss@e® lbeen used to acquire or expand the enterprise
facilities. In some instances, revenue generatethéenterprise funds is used to pay the generg-
term debt principal and interest. The liability thiose bonds that are expected to be paid by eige
funds is included in those funds.
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for gendsidation bonds are as follows:

Fiscal Year Endin Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
201( 9,354,53 3,063,93I 590,46. 161,82
2011 9,570,840 2,756,034 604,160 140,850
201z 9,877,14. 2,427,73 622,85 119,24
201: 8,853,44 2,082,93. 641,55 96,59.
201« 8,558,44 1,771,92 636,55! 71,99
2015-201 29,249,74 4,396,15: 1,245,25 80,62
2020-202 5,190,00 541,07¢ - -
Total $ 80,654,16 $ 17,039,78 $ 434084 $ 671,13

On October 15, 2008, the City issued $17,005,000 oérg¢mbligation bonds for a current refunding
$17,080,000 of general obligation bonds. The refunpdims undertaken to reduce total future «
service payments. The result of the transactioa ieduction of $1,649,714 in future debt senr
payments and an economic gain of $1,416,867.

On June 8, 2009, the City issued $5,840,000 of general tibligaonds for a current refunding of
$6,060,000 of general obligation bonds. The refunding wasrtaken to reduce total future debt serv
payments. The result of the transaction is a reducti®@7,283 in future debt service payments anc
economic gain of $560,372.

Revenue Bonds

As of June 30, 2009, the following unmatured revenue lissues are outstanding:

Wastewater
Parking Treatment Water
Original issue amount $ 11,350,000 $ 68,975,000 $ 233)36
Interest rates 5.9% to 6.0% 3.0% to 5.0% 2.0% to 4.
Annual maturities $ 390,000t0 $ 260,000t0 $ 330160
$ 895,000 $ 3,010,000 $ 835,0

Amount outstanding $ 9,665,000 $ 54,770,000 $ 23,380,C

57



CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

June 30, 2009

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturitysai@laws:

Fiscal Year Ending Business-type Activities

June 30 Principal Interest
2010 5,275,000 3,924,037
2011 6,240,000 3,472,389
2012 6,575,000 3,231,351
2013 6,795,000 2,975,848
2014 5,035,000 2,746,075

2015-2019 28,625,000 10,356,513
2020-2024 24,635,000 3,697,709
2025-2029 4,635,000 190,744

$ 87,815,000 30,594,666

The revenue bond ordinances required that wastewatgment, parking system, and water revenue
set aside into separate and special accounts astbeeceived. The use and the amounts to be et
in the accounts are as follows:

Account Amount

(a) Revenue Bond and Interest
Sinking Reserve

Amount sufficient to paseat bond and interest maturities.

(b) Revenue Debt Service Reserve Amount requiredetaddposited in the Revenue Bond
Interest Reserve until the reserve fund equalkif@iRevenut
and Water Revenue bonds — maximum debt serviceoduée
bonds in any succeeding fiscal year. Wastewater fRm
bonds — 125% of the average principal and interagments
over the life of all the Wastewater Revenue bonds.

(c) Improvement Reserve $20,000 per month untilréserve balance equals or exce
$2,000,000 for Wastewater Revenue bonds, $5,000 pathi
until the reserve balance equals or exceeds $30600Farking
Revenue bonds and $450,000 for Water Revenue baiittisno
further deposits once the minimum balance is rehckfethe
reserve falls below the required minimum, monthbnsfers ir
the aforementioned amounts will resume.
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On October 15, 2008, the City issued $24,280,000 sfemater revenue bonds for a current refundir
$24,810,000 of wastewater revenue bonds. The refgndas undertaken to reduce total future (
service payments. The result of the transactioa i®duction of $3,245,227 in future debt ser
payments and an economic gain of $2,516,712.

Also, on October 15, 2008, the City issued $7,115,000ater revenue bonds for a current refundin
$7,045,000 of water revenue bonds. The refunding umaertaken to reduce total future debt ser
payments. The result of the transaction is a réatucf $571,390 in future debt service paymentsamr
economic gain of $424,441.

On May 18, 2009, the City issued $8,660,000 of wastewatenueuvgonds for a current refunding of
$9,220,000 of wastewater revenue bonds on July 1, 2009. Aslf tiee refunded wastewater revenu
bonds from that issue are considered to be defeasetiatdbility has been removed from the financ
statements. The refunding was undertaken to reducdutied debt service payments. The result of
transaction is a reduction of $1,479,329 in future debiepayments and an economic gain of
$1,148,058.

Also, on May 18, 2009, the City issued $9,750,000 of water revieands for a current refunding of
$9,895,000 of water revenue bonds on July 1, 2009. As a tesulefunded water revenue bonds fro
that issue are considered to be defeased and the lidaitpeen removed from the financial statemet
The refunding was undertaken to reduce total future @ebice payments. The result of the transacti
is a reduction of $1,407,282 in future debt service paysreamd an economic gain of $1,040,086.
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Summary of Bond Issues

CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

June 30, 2009

General obligation and revenue bonds payable at Jun®@®, &e comprised of the following issues:

Date of Amount Interest Final Outstanding
Issue Issued Rates Maturity June 30, 20(
General Obligation Bonds:
Multi-Purpose and Library
Construction May 2002 $ 29,100,000 3.5-5.0 6/21 16,895,00!
Refunded Multi-Purpose (1) Oct. 2002 10,600,0002.5 - 4.0 6/15 2,470,00(
Multi-Purpose Nov. 2003 5,570,000 2.5-3.6 6/14 2,710,001
Taxable-Urban Renewal Mar. 2004 7,305,000 4.0-5.4 6/23 6,660,00(
Multi-Purpose Mar. 2005 7,020,000 3.0-4.0 6/15 4,505,00(
Multi-Purpose Jun. 2006 6,265,000 3.625-4.0 6/16 4,690,00
Multi-Purpose Jun. 2006 1,000,000 55-5.6 6/16 765,00(
Refunded Water
Construction (2) Sep. 2006 3,350,000 3.6 - 3.75 6/17 2,415,001
Multi-Purpose May 2007 8,870,000 3.75 6/17 7,350,00(
Multi-Purpose June 2008 9,150,000 3.25-3.75 6/18 8,355,00
Refunded Multi-Purpo: Oct. 200! 17,005,00 3.0-3.7 6/1€ 15,150,00
Multi-Purpost June 200 6,685,00! 25-4.( 6/1¢ 6,685,00!
Taxable- Housing Improvemr June 200 505,00( 1.5 -3.( 6/14 505,00(
Refunded Multi-Purpo: June 200 5,840,001 2.0 -4.( 6/1€ 5,840,00!
Total General Obligation Bonds $ 84,995,000
Date of Amount Interest Final Outstanding
Issue Issued Rates Maturity June 30, 20(
Revenue Bonds:
Parking Bonds Dec.1999 $ 11,350,000 5.875-6.0 7124 9,665,001
Wastewater Treatment
Bonds Dec. 2001 10,250,000 4.5-5.0 7120 10,250,00(
Refunded Wastewater
Treatment Bonds (3) Apr. 2002 25,785,000 3.25 - 4.1 7/12 11,580,001
Refunded Wastewater
Treatment Bonds (4) Oct. 2008 24,280,000 3.0 - 5.0 7122 24,280,00!
Refunded Wastewater
Treatment Bonds (5) May 2009 8,660,000 3.5 -5.0 7125 8,660,00!
Water Bonds Oct. 2002 8,500,000 2.0 -4.65 7122 6,515,00!
Refunded Water Bonds (6) Oct. 2008 7,115,0003.0 - 4.375 7124 7,115,00
Refunded Water Bonds (7) May 2009 9,750,0004.0 -4.5 7125 9,750,00(
Total Revenue Bonds 87,815,000
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(1) This bond issue has a portion of the genebéijation bonds payable shown as a liability on
balance sheet of the Water Fund.

(2) This bond issue has the general obligation bgayable shown as a liability on the balance sbi
the Water Fund. Also, this bond issue refunds theeNmer 1997 Water Construction Gent
Obligation Bonds.

(3) This bond issue refunds the January 1993 WastewatenRe Bonds.

(4) This bond issue refunds the March 1996, May 1997, an&dahf99 Wastewater Revenue Bond.

(5) This bond issue refunds the October 2000 Wastewatenide Bonds.

(6) This bond issue refunds the May 1999 Water RevenuesBond

(7) This bond issue refunds the December 2000 Water Re\Bonds.

Conduit Debt Obligations

From time to time, the City has issued Industrial/&epment Revenue Bonds and Facility Refunc
Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance it@far sector entities for the acquisition, consiargi
and renovation of industrial and commercial faieiitdeemed to be in the public interest. The bonel
collateralized by the property financed and areapdgy solely from payments received on the undegl
mortgage loans. All payments on the bonds are madené private sector entities directly to a b
trustee, who is a third party financial institutiamd in turn, disburses the payment to the respelotne
holders. Neither the City, the State, nor any politezébdivision thereof is obligated in any mannar
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds arereported as liabilities in the accompany
financial statements.

As of June 30, 2009, there were two series of In@sevelopment Revenue Bonds and Fac
Refunding Revenue Bonds outstanding, with an aggregatgpal amount payable of $39,501,549.

Debt Legal Compliance
Legal Debt Margin:

As of June 30, 2009, the general obligation debteddy the City did not exceed its legal debt ma
computed as follows:

Assessed valuation:

Real property $ 4,215,084,21¢
Utilities 65,749,643
Total valuation 4,280,833,857
Debt limit, 5% of total assessed valuation $ 214,041,692
Debt applicable to debt limit:
General obligation bonds 84,995,000

Legal debt margin $ 129,046,692
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7. Other Long-term Liabilities
Notes Payable

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities - Notes Payable

Note Payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2009, wablaxesfo

Due Within
July 1, 2008 Issues Retirements June 30, 2009 One Y¢

Governmental activitie 211,00( - - 211,00(

A note payable was issued to Greater lowa City hou$ellowship for the purchase of an 11 (
apartment building for low income and disabled lwgisn the Peninsula Neighborhood. The term
the loan are 1%, interest only payments for twengryevith a final balloon payment of $211,000 due
August 1, 2025.

Employee Vested Benefits

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities - Employee Vestethenefits

Employee Vested Benefits activity for the year ehdiene 30, 2009, was as follows:

Due Within

July 1, 2008 Issues Retirements June 30, 2009 One Ye

Governmental activitie $ 1,962,29( $ 1,117,493 $ 1,049,665 $ 2,030,118 $ 1,087,269
Business-type activitie $ 494,36¢ $ 282,01« $ 265936 $ 510,44 ¢ 278,551

For the governmental activities, employee vestecetitsnare generally liquidated by the General F
and Community Development Block Grant Fund.

Landfill Closure / Post-Closure Care Costs
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities - Landfill Closure Postclosure Care Costs

Landfill Closure Post-closure care activity for the year endeé 30, 2009, was as follows:

Due Within
July 1, 2008 Issues Retirements June 30, 2009 One Year
Business-type activitie $ 10,097,69: $ 548,24 % - $ 10,645,93! $ -

In August 1993, the GASB issued Statement No.A&ounting for Municipal Solid Waste Land
Closure and Post-closure Care Codthe Statement). Under these rules, in addition teraimg
expenses related to current activities of the lidindih expense provision and related liability &eing
recognized based on the future closure and postieocare costs that will be incurred near or dfte
date the landfill no longer accepts waste. The neitiog of these landfill closure and post-closuezea
costs is based on the amount of the landfill used dunmgear.
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The estimated liability for landfill closure and gteclosure care costs as of June 30, 2009, is
approximately $10,645,935, which is based on 81.9%eugfited) of the landfill and is included in
accrued liabilities within the Sanitation Fund.dtastimated that an additional amount of approaiypat
$4,688,700 will be recognized as closure and postictocare expenses between the date of the balance
sheet and the date the landfill is expected toilkesl fto capacity by the year ended June 30, 2019e T
estimated total current cost of the landfill claswand post-closure care costs at June 30, 2009, was
determined by engineers from Howard R. Green Compadyapproximated $12,998,700. It is based on
the amount that would be paid if all equipment, Ifées, and services required to close, monitor, and
maintain the landfill were acquired as of June BW9. These amounts are based on an estimated post-
closure care and monitoring period of 30 years,sbent with current State Department of Natural
Resources regulations. However, the actual costosupt and post-closure care may be higher due to
inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landflld and regulations.

The City is required by federal and state laws andlagigus to provide some form of financial assurance
to finance closure and post-closure care. The City will itedihancial assurance obligations through the
issuance of general obligation bonds. As of June 319,20e Sanitation Fund had $12,033,534 in related
equity in pooled cash and investments, at fair valegignated for satisfaction of post-closure cokte

City estimates that these cash reserves will onbyige a fraction of the dollars needed to closd an
monitor the landfill. The remaining portion of padosure care costs, anticipated future inflationtsos
and additional costs that might arise from chanigepost-closure requirements (due to changes in
technology or more rigorous environmental regufetjdor example) may need to be covered by charges
to future landfill users as well as City taxpayers.

Other Post Employment Benefits

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities - Other Post EmploymenBenefits

Due Within
July 1, 2008 Issues Retirements June 30, 2009 One Year
Governmental activitie $ $ 464,70 $ $ 464,700 $
Business-type activitie $ $ 201,090 $ $ 201,090 $

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accountind Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits other Than Penspiuring the year ended June 30, 2009.

Plan DescriptionThe City operates two self-funded medical and aleplians, one for Police and Fire
Union employees and one for all other employees, lwaie offered to current and retired employees and
their dependents. All full-time employees whonetrr terminate/resign and their eligible dependargs
offered the following post-employment benefit options:

Health insurance and dental insurance + The optiazontinuing with the City's health insurance
plan at the individual's expense. These benefits agase Medicare eligibility.

Life insurance *+ The option of converting the emplds City-paid policy to an individual policy at
the individual's expense with the City's life insurarazgrier.
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Long-term disability — For employees who terminate/resign and have been on the plan for a minimum
of one year, the option of converting the employee’s City-paid group policy to a personal policy at the
individual’s expense with the City’s long-term disability insurance carrier.

The above options, while at the individual’s own expense, are included within the City’s overall insurance
package, which results in an implicit rate subsidy and an OPEB liability.

Funding Policy: The contribution requirements of plans members are established and may be amended by
the City. The City currently finances the benefit plans on a pay-as-you-go basis.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The City’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the
annual required contribution (ARC) of the City, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not
to exceed 30 years.

The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year ended June 30,
2009, the amount actually contributed to the plans, and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation:

Annual required contribution $1,288,466
Interest on net OPEB obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPEB costs 1,288,466
Contributions made 622.675
Increase in net OPEB obligation . 665,791

Net OPEB obligation beginning of year -
Net OPEB obligation end of year $ 665,791

For calculation of the net OPEB obligation, the actuary has set the transition day as July 1, 2008. The end
of year net OPEB obligation was calculated by the actuary as the cumulative difference between the
actuarially determined funding requirements and the actual contributions for the year ended June 30,
20009. ' '

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plans and the net
OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2009 are summarized as follows:

Percentage of Annual
Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Year Ended OPEB Cost Contributed from City Obligation
June 30, 2009 $1,288,466 51.67% $665,791

Funded Status and Funding Progress: As of July 1, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date for the
period July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2009, the actuarial accrued liability was $15,235,196, with no
actuarial value of assets, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $15,235,196. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plans) was $32,804,905 and the ration
of the UAAL to covered payroll was 46.44%.  As of June 30, 2009, there were no trust fund assets.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptian&ctuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involvetimates of th
value of reported amounts and assumptions abouirtiEability of events far into the future. Exang
include assumption about future employments, meytaéind the health care cost trend. Actuari
determined amounts are subject to continual re@swactual results are compared with past expeat
and new estimates are made about the future.

The required schedule of funding progress, preseatedequired supplementary information in
section following the Notes to Financial Statememtdl present multi-year trend information abc
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is asing or decreasing over time relative to the a&l
accrued liabilities for benefits.

Calculations are based on the types of benefitsiggd under the terms of the substantive plan @
time of each valuation and on the pattern of sigaoiilcosts between the employer and plans memo:
that point. The projection of benefits for finadgi@porting purposes does not explicitly incorpertie
potential effects of legal or contractual fundingitations on the pattern of cost sharing betwdwer
employer and plans members in the future.

As of the July 1, 2008 actuarial valuation date, dibtuarial cost method used is the entry age nc
method. The actuarial assumption includes a 4%odidcrate. The projected annual medical trend
is 10.5%. The ultimate medical trend rate is 6% e Tedical trend rate is reduced by 0.5% each
until reaching the 6% ultimate trend rate. Thejgmted annual dental trend rate is 6.0%. The ult
dental trend rate is 4%. The dental trend rate is reldog®.5% each year until reaching the 4% ultin
trend rate.

Mortality rates for active employees are from tHe-Z2000 Employee Table and for retirees are from
2000 Healthy Annuitant Table, applied on a gengecHsic basis. Annual retirement and termina
probabilities were developed from the retiremembabilities from the MFPRSI and IPERS pension |
turnover tables, adjusted to be consistent with recénteperience.

Projected claim costs of the health and dental plans afe@DBer month. The salary increase rate w
assumed to be 3.5% per year. The UAAL is being amortized aslgptreentage of projected payroll
expenses over 30 years.

8. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss relatetorts; theft of, damage to, and destructionsskets
workplace accidents, errors and omissions; andralatlisasters. During fiscal year 1988 the (
established the Loss Reserve Fund, an internalcgefwind, to account for and finance its uninsurskis
of loss. During the year ended June 30, 2009 the Quihased property, liability, and worke
compensation insurance under the program that geevior a $100,000 self-insured retention
occurrence on property losses, a $500,000 selfédsuetention per occurrence on liability, an
$400,000 self-insured retention on workers’ compgoisalosses. The liability insurance provic
coverage for claims in excess of the aforementioself-insured retention up to a maximum
$21,000,000 annual aggregate of losses paid. The togefands pay annual premiums to the L
Reserve Fund. Accumulated monies in the Loss Redeune are available to cover the self-inst
retention amounts and any uninsured losses. Setd@ds have not exceeded this commercial cove
in any of the past sixteen fiscal years.
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The Housing Authority Fund is insured under a safgampolicy with the Assisted Housing R
Management Association. The remaining funds pasdteipn the Loss Reserve Fund. The funds n
payments to the Loss Reserve Fund based on attestiraates of the amounts needed to pay prior-
current-year claims and to establish a reservecédastrophic losses. The Fund’s accrued liabil
balance includes a claims liability at June 30, 2B&Sed on the requirements of GASB Statement
10, as amended, which requires that a liability fames be reported if information prior to the issoa
of the financial statements indicates that it ishable that a liability has been incurred at thie dd the
financial statements and the amount of the loss caralsemably estimated. Changes in the Loss Res

Fund’s claims liability amount for property, lialbylji and workers’ compensation for the years er
June 30, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:
Current-Year

Beginning-of- Claims and Balance ai
Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal
Liability Estimates Payments Year-End
2007 — 2008 $ 1,237,000 $ 876,000 $ 813,000 $ 1,30
2008 — 2009 1,300,000 889,000 952,000 1,23

Also, the City is partially self-insured, through [gtless insurance, for employee health care cove
which is available to all of its permanent empl@/e€his insurance provides stop-loss coverage
claims in excess of $100,000 per employee with agreggte stop-loss of $7,355,786. The oper:
funds are charged premiums by the Loss Reserve. HinadCity reimburses a health insurance prov
for actual medical costs incurred, plus a claimscessing\administrative fee. Changes in the |
Reserve Fund’s claims liability amount for healdrec coverage for the years ended June 30, 200
2008 are as follows:

Current-Year

Beginning-of- Claims and Balance al
Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal
Liability Estimates Payments Year-End
2007 — 2008 $ 589,000 $ 5,901,000 $ 5,802,000 $ 68!

2008 — 2009 688,000 6,649,000 6,500,000 837
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9. Contractual Commitments and Contingencies

The total outstanding contractual commitments as of 3An2009 are as follows:

Fund Project Amount
Bridge, street and traffic ~ Paving and bridge construction, $ 2,054,138
control construction engineering design and consulting
Other construction Public works construction, culture & recreation
construction, and fire station construction 402,027

Water Water main construction 139,708

Parking Garage access controls and repair & maintenance 121,516

Sanitation Landfill consulting 416,608

Airport Runway extension consulting, grading and paving 3,211,097
$ 6,345,094

10. Contingent Liabilities
Litigation

The City is a defendant in a number of lawsuits arising prifigifilom claims against the City fc
alleged improper actions by City employees, with such lawsgpisally involving claims of imprope
police action, unlawful taking of property by zoning, negligence, app&falsondemnations, ar
discrimination. Total damages claimed are substantial; howéveas been the City’s experience t
such actions are settled for amounts substantially less tammed amounts. The City’'s managem
estimates that the potential claims against the Citycogred by various insurance policies, would
materially affect the financial condition of the City. ThayChas the authority to levy additional ta
(outside the regular limit) to cover uninsured judgments againgithe

11. Pension and Retirement Systems
Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa

The City is a patrticipating employer in the Municipal Fire d@ualice Retirement System of loy
(MFPRSI or the Plan), which is a cost-sharing multiple-emplogdined benefit public police and fi
employees retirement system. All fire fighters and policeef§ appointed under civil service particig
in the Plan. The Plan provides retirement, disability, and deatfitsethat are established under s
statute. The Plan issues a publicly available financial regpatt includes financial statements ¢
required supplementary information. The report may be obtaineditiggrto Municipal Fire and Polic
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Retirement System of lowa, 7155 Lake Drive Suite 201, WestMa@ses, lowa 50266 or the report m:
be obtained from websiteww.mfprsi.orgunder the publications link. A member may retire at age
with 22 years of employment, and receive full benefits thategual to 66% of the member’'s aver:
final compensation. Additionally, members retiring with more thary@&s of service will receive &
additional 2% of the member’s average final compensationgdo 8 years of additional service. Otf
benefits are also calculated at varying percentages alvérage final compensation. Benefits vest a
four years of service.

Member contribution rates are established by state statateth& fiscal year ended June 30, 20
members contributed 9.35%. The City’s contribution rate is based upactuzarially determined normi
contribution rate. The normal contribution rate is provided by statete to be the actuarial liabilities
the plan less current plan assets, the total then being dlilbid&% of the actuarially determined pres
value of prospective future compensation of all members, furtddirced by member contributior
Legislatively appropriated contributions from the state te fgtan may further reduce the City
contribution rate. However, the City’s contribution rate may het less than 17% of earnatk
compensation.

The City was required to contribute 18.75% of earnable compengditeatch member in 2009, 25.48
of earnable compensation in 2008, and 27.75% of earnable compensation in 20&bhtiiibetions paid
by the City for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2008, and 2009, were $1,954,182, $1,910,
$1,434,031 respectively, and was equal to the required contributions for each yea

lowa Public Employees Retirement System

The City contributes to the lowa Public Employees RetirerBgatem (IPERS), which is a cost-shari
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by thte $f lowa. IPERS provide
retirement and death benefits, which are established by State sigilae members and beneficiaries.

IPERS issues a publicly available financial report thatubies financial statements and requil
supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writinPERS, P.O. Box 9117, De
Moines, lowa 50306-9117.

All employees, except temporary employees of six months or lessygibyment duration, who do ni
participate in any other public retirement system in the staesligible and must participate in IPEF
The pension plan provides retirement and death benefits thestatdished by state statute. Generall
member may retire at the age of 65, or any time after age 62 amiZ0or more of service, or when &
plus years of service equals or exceeds 88, and receive unretucage) benefits. Members may al
retire at the age of 55 or more at reduced benefits. Benedst after four years of service or af
attaining the age of 55. Full benefits are equal to 60% adtheage of the highest three years of cove
wages times years of service divided by 30.

Plan members are required to contribute 4.10% of their annualecbselary and the City is required
contribute 6.35% of annual covered payroll. Contribution requiresnam established by state statt
The City’s contributions to IPERS for the years ended June 30, 2008, and 2009, were $1,384,1]
$1,534,552, and $1,668,173 respectively, and were equal to the required contributiodis yeaea
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12. Municipal Utility Systems
Water System

The Water Division is comprised of five parts: Administati Treatment Plant, Customer Servi
Distribution, and Public Information/Education. There are a tdtdP.75 (FTE) employees who work
the Water Division. This division serves 67,831 people and has2@@00 customers. The avera
daily use for 2009 was 5.51 million gallons per day (MGD). A gkak of 10.6 MGD was experience
during the summer of 1989.

Water Sources The primary source of water for the City is thauatl collector wells along the low
River. Four collector wells can provide approximately 11.0 MGRdditional sources include tw
Jordan aquifer wells which can provide 2.0 MGD; four Siluran aguifels which can provide 1.i
MGD; a sand pit that can provide 3.0 MGD; a river intake tam provide 3.0 MGD; for a total ¢
approximately 20 MGD maximum capacity.

Water Treatment ProcesseBhe facilities include one treatment plant (constructe2DB8B) located at 8(
Stephen Atkins Drive. The plant is a surface water piasign that includes aeration, lime soften
(coagulation/flocculation/sedimentation), and granular activatedrcoal filtration processes wil
fluoridation and free chlorination. The grade four water figodmploys operators that perform over 2
water quality tests per day in-house and collect samples fargegtthe University Hygienic Laborator
This testing ensures that the water meets all of the Safeilgiikater Act Standards.

Distribution System The water flows through approximately 288 miles of water maiksincludes ove
25,000 service connections. The distribution piping consists ofircastductile and PVC main the
ranges in size from 2" to 30". The treatment plant site has effectiwr statage capacity of 1.75 millic
gallons of water; in addition there are four remote ground staoesgevoirs (with pumping stations) th
add up to remote effective storage capacity of 6.0 million galtidnwater. The water system al.
provides for fire protection with approximately 3,100 hydrants located thomtighe community.

Billing and Collections Customers are billed monthly on a combined utility statemeithwihcludes
charges for sewer, water, solid waste, and curbside recyclinigder present City policy and Ci
ordinances, utility bills are due when received but containiagieincy date which provides 15 days
payment. If payment is not made in full within 22 days, a notice iedwhich allows 25 calendar da
before service is disconnected. The City’s bad debt write-offs havedsesetihan 0.5% of gross revent
for the past three years.

Rates:
The following rates and charges were effective July 1, 2008.

Water Service Charge Minimums (includes up to the first 100 culti¢dég)

Meter Size Meter Size
(Inches) Charge (Inches) Charge
5/8” $6.41 2" $22.14
3/4” 7.00 3” 40.91
1’ 8.26 47 71.37

11/2” 16.47 6" 143.61
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Monthly Usage in excess of 100 cubic feet (c.f.)

101 - 3,000 $2.99 per 100 c.f.

3,001 and over $2.15 per 100 c.f.
Single Purpose Meter Charges

First 100 (c.f) Minimum Monthly Char¢

Usage in excess of 100 cubic feet (c.f.) $2.99 per 100 c.f.

Changes in water rates over the last ten fiscal years.

2000 10%
2001 0%
2002 0%
2003 - 5%
2004 -5%
2005 0%
2006 0%
2007 - 5%
2008 0%

2009 0%
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Financial Information The following table summarizes the results of operations for the Watensfer

the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007.

WATER SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Last Three Fiscal Yee
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Personal services
Commodities
Services and charges

Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Operating Grants
Interest income
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income before capital contributions
and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net assets

Net Assets, Beginning

Net Assets, Ending

2009 2008 2007
$ 8107 $ 8195 $ 8,240
86 134 51

8,193 8,329 8,291
2,316 2,160 2,091
768 1,348 1,463

2,642 1,840 1,802
5,726 5,348 5,356
2,124 2,065 2,024
7,850 7,413 7,380

343 916 911

- (2) -

15 - -
625 931 929
(1,351) (1,426) (1,549)
(711) (497) (620)
(368) 419 291
132 314 845
469 689 3,045
(698) (820) (237)
(465) 602 3,944

60,606 60,004 56,060
$ 60,141 $ 60,606 $ 60,004
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June 30, 2009
The following table summarizes the budget and actual figurethéokVater System for the fiscal ye
ended June 30, 2008 and the budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 on a cash basis.

WATER SYSTEM
BUDGET AND ACTUALS (CASH BASIS)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2
(amounts expressed in thousands)

FY10
Actual Budge Percentac Budge
Charges for services $ 8,144 $ 8,425 96.66% $ 8,390
Interest income 561 1,025 54.73% 515
Miscellaneous 92 49 187.76% 1,799
Operating grants - 169 0.00% 1,749
Bond sales 16,952 17,251 98.27% -
Total Receip $ 25,74¢ $ 26,91¢ 95.65% $ 12,45
Personal services $ 2353 % 2,371 99.24% $ 2,492
Commodities 652 768 84.90% 708
Services and charg 2,18t 2,58: 84.62¥% 2,57¢
Capital outlay 994 4,318 23.02% 4,502
Transfer to capital project fur 477 1,101 43.32% 1,524
Operating subsic 17 17 100.00% 20
Debt service payments 19,790 20,152 98.20% 2,833
Total Disbursements $ 26,468 $ 31,309 84.54% $ 14,653

Sewer System

The City of lowa City operates a municipal Sewer Utilitys®yn consisting of approximately 300 mi
of sanitary sewers, 14 lift stations, and 2 treatment plahiere are a total of 25.60 (FTE) employ
who work in the Wastewater Division. This division serves 67,83plpeand has over 23,0
customers. The average daily treatment for 2009 was 12.34 million gallodayp@iGD).

The North Plant was constructed in 1935 and the South Plant wadetednin 1990 and upgraded
2002. The connecting of the North and South Plants was completed in 1998ityThas the capabilit
to divert treatment to the South Plant and control all operatemstely through computer systems. -
combined wastewater treatment system has a maximum dpdgitaof 41.00 MGD. Both plants are
compliance with federal clean water standards.

Billing and Collections Customers are billed monthly on a combined utility statememthwhcludes
charges for sewer, water, solid waste, and curbside recyclisigder present City policy and C
ordinances, utility bills are due when received but containiagigincy date which provides 15 days
payment. If payment is not made in full within 22 days, a notice iedwahich allows 25 calendar da
before service is disconnected. The City’s bad debt write-offs havedssetihén 0.5% of gross reven
for the past three years.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
June 30, 2009
Rates:
The following rates and charges were effective July 1, 2008.

Sewer Service Charge Minimum (includes up to the first 100 cubic f&¢t (c $8.15
Monthly Usage in excess of 100 cubic feet (c.f.) $

Changes in sewer rates over the last ten fiscal years.

2000 20%
2001 5%
2002 5%
2003 0%
2004 0%
2005 0%
2006 0%
2007 8%
2008 0%

2009 5%
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
June 30, 2009
Financial Information: The 'following table summarizes the results of operations for the Sewer System for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007.

SEWER SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Last Three Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2009 12008 2007
Operating Revenues: ' '
Charges for services ‘ $ 12,557 $ 12318 $ 12,535
Miscellaneous . 84 75 53
Total operating revenues 12,641 12,393 12,588
Operating Expenses:
Personal services 1,848 1,651 1,497
Commodities 853 606 554
Services and charges 2,501 - 2,324 2,185
5,202 4,581 4,236
Depreciation 4,155 4181 4,209
Total operating expenses 9,357 8,762 8,445
'Operating income 3,284 3,631 4,143
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 131 ®) -
Operating grants 1 - 1
Interest income 820 944 1,119
Interest expense (2,578) (3,041) (3,213)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (1,626) (2,102) (2,093)
Income before capital contributions : :
and transfers 1,658 1,529 2,050
Capital contributions 266 577 1,539
Transfers in ‘ 148 30 928
Transfers out (296) (69) 97
Change in net assets 1,776 2,067 - 4420
Net Assets, Beginning 73,119 71,052 66,632
Net Assets, Ending. $ 74,895 $ 73,119 $ 71,052
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
June 30, 2009
The following table summarizes the budget and actual figurethé Sewer System for the fiscal y
ended June 30, 2008 and the budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 on a cash basis.

SEWER SYSTEM
BUDGET AND ACTUALS (CASH BASIS)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2
(amounts expressed in thousands)

FY10

Actual Budge Percentac Budge
Charges for servic $ 12,61 $ 13,57 92.90% $ 13,41
Interest incomr 1,411 91k 154.21% 672

Miscellaneou 84 - 0.00% -
Operating gran - 1,06: 0.00% 20,56:
Local option sales ti - - 0.00% 3,90(

Bond sale 33,59( 34,36¢ 97.74% -
Total Receip $ 47,69¢ $ 49,91¢ 95.55% $ 38,54¢
Personal servic $ 1,77¢ $ 1,802 98.67% $ 1,89
Commoditie 564 47¢ 119.249% 58C
Services and charg 2,47¢ 2,461 100.61% 2,57¢
Capital outla 27E 2,30( 11.96Y% 27,88¢
Transfer to capital project fur 12t 50C 25.00% 624
Operating subsic 17 17 100.00% 20
Debt service paymer 40,82 41,51 98.34¥ 6,88:
Total Disbursemer $ 46,057 $ 49,06¢ 93.87% $ 40,46

13. Subsequent events

On November 23, 2009, the City of lowa City received and awardedalcépan notes for Parkir
Revenue Refunding Capital Loan Notes, Series 2009F in the amount 00,8911 The notes we
issued to current refund on November 23, 2009, $9,275,000 of the Citytanoling Parking Revent
Bonds, Series 1999, dated December 1, 1999.

14. New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Standards

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issuesh sstements not vy
implemented by the City. The statements, which might impact the City awboagst

Statement No. 51Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangibleskts issued June 2007, will |
effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010. This staterequires that all intangible assets
specifically excluded by its scope be classified as capital assets.

Statement No. 53\ccounting and Financial Reporting for Derivativestrumentsissued June 2008, w
be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010. This statemddresses the recogniti
measurement, and disclosure of information regarding derivatsteuments entered into by state
local governments.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
June 30, 2009
Statement No. 54;und Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Typénidions issued Februatl
2009, will be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. ThierSént establishes new stand:
for fund balance classifications based primarily on the extewhtch a government is bound to obse

constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governoredgal f

The City’s management has not yet determined the effeceé thiasements will have on the Cit
financial statements.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS AND ENTERPRISE FU NDS
BUDGETARY BASIS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
(dollar amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental
Fund Types Enterprise Fund
Actual Budgetary Types Actual Total Actual
Basis Budgetary Basis Budgetary Basis
Revenues:
Property Tax $ 43,137 $ -$ 43,1
Tax increment financing taxes 3,693 - 3,6¢
Other city taxes 1,597 - 1,5¢
Licenses and permits 1,272 8 1,2¢
Intergovernmental 21,353 10,696 32,04
Charges for services 4,758 34,830 39,58
Use of money and property 1,543 3,379 4,92
Miscellaneous 3,412 2,090 5,50
Total revenues 80,765 51,003 131,7€
Expenditures/Expenses:

Public safety 20,025 - 20,0:
Public works 11,958 - 11,9!
Culture and recreation 10,577 - 10,5
Community and economic development 13,893 - 13,8¢
General government 7,183 - 7,1¢
Debt service 35,740 - 35,7
Capital outlay 12,693 - 12,6¢
Business-type - 76,186 76,18
Total expenditures/expenses 112,069 76,186 188,2t

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures/expenses (31,304) (25,183) (56,48
Other financing sources and uses, net 32,647 49,801 82,44
Net change in fund balances 1,343 24,618 25,96
Balances, beginning of year 47,221 78,239 125,4¢€
Balances, end of year 48,564 102,857 151,42

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Budgeted Amounts

Final to Actual

Variance -
Positive
Original (Negative)
43,168 $ 43,168 $ (31
2,478 3,809 (11¢
1,587 1,586 1]
1,308 1,308 (2¢
22,537 63,944 (31,89!
40,342 39,926 (33¢
5,504 5,150 (22¢
5,698 6,722 (1,221
122,622 165,613 (33,84!
18,116 26,277 6,25:
12,577 13,467 1,50¢
11,332 11,603 1,02¢
5,051 31,023 17,131
8,183 8,264 1,08:
12,662 36,660 92(
12,863 28,611 15,91
60,429 118,228 42,04:
141,213 274,133 85,87!¢
(18,591) (108,520) 52,03:
9,619 85,587 (3,13¢
(8,972) (22,933) 48,89:
104,586 125,460
95,614 102,527
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CITY OF IOWA CITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Revenues

Expenditures

Net

Other financing sources (uses)
Beginning Fund Balances
Ending Fund Balances

Revenues

Expenditures

Net

Other financing sources (uses)
Beginning Fund Balances
Ending Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
(dollar amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Fund Types

Accrual Modified Accrual
Budget Basis Adjustments Basis
$ 80,765 $ (943% 79,82
112,069 (25,848) 86,22
(31,304) 24,905 (6,39
32,647 (24,546) 8,10
$ 47,228 (6,800% 40,42
$ 48,5645 (6,441% 42,12
Enterprise Fund Types
Accrual Accrual
Budget Basis Adjustments Basis
$ 51,003 $ (4,229% 46,77
76,186 (33,307) 42,87
(25,183) 29,078 3,89!
49,801 (46,414) 3,38
78,23% 152,581 230,82
$ 102,85% 135,245% 238,10

See Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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City of lowa City, lowa
Note to Required Supplementary Information - Budgetary Reporting
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

In accordance with Code of lowa, the City Councihaailly adopts a budget following required pul
notice and hearing which includes all funds, exdefgirnal service funds and agency funds. The bt
basis of accounting is cash basis. The annual budgg be amended during the year utilizing sinr
statutorily prescribed procedures.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upoge major classes of expenditures known as funct
not by fund or fund type. These nine functions apetblic safety, public works, health and so
services, culture and recreation, community and eoénalevelopment, general government, ¢
service, capital outlay and business-type. The legal tmntrol is at the aggregated function level, nt
the fund or fund type level.

During the year, budget amendments increased budlgetenues by $42,991,000 and expenditure
$175,911,000. The budget amendments were primarilyt@gbanges in breadth and timing of cay
improvement projects and repair and clean-up arsiisrelated grants due to the flood in the sumrh
2008.
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City of Iowa City, Iowa

Note to Required Supplementary Information — Schedule of Funding Progress for Health and
Dental Plans :
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

_ UAAL Asa

Actuarial  Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Percentage

Valuation  Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered  of Covered
Date Assets Liability (AAL)  (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

July 1,2008 $ - $15,235,196  $15,235,196  0.0%  $32,804,905 46.44%
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds account for revenues deffiged specific sources that are required to
accounted for as separate funds. The funds in this egtagd their purpose are as follows:

Other Shared Revenue and Grants Fund- accounts for revenue from various sources, pifynarad
use tax monies from the State of lowa and reimbursablegmsgiunded by federal and state grants.

Economic Development Fund— accounts for revenue and expenditures of ecanataielopmen
activities.

Johnson County Council of Governments Fund— accounts for the financial activities of !
metropolitan/rural cooperative planning organization.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are utilized to accountafbresources used in the acquisition and constnuctf
capital facilities and other major fixed assetshwiie exception of those that are financed by ppetgy
fund monies. The fund in this category is as follows:

Other Construction Fund — accounts for the construction or replacementtbér City general fixe

assets, such as administrative buildings with wariminding sources, including general obligationdsp
intergovernmental revenues and contributions.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Asset:

Equity in pooled cash and investments
Receivables:
Property tax
Accounts and unbilled usage
Interest
Due from other governments
Restricted assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments

Total asse

Liabilities and Fund Balance:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other governments
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Unreserved
Undesignated

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balanc

June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Special Revenue Capital Projects

Bridge,
Johnson Street, and
County Traffic
Economic Council of Control Other

Development Governments Construction Construction Total
$ 32% 49 $ 637 $ 213 $ 1,224
29 - - - 2¢
- - 155 5 16(
24 - - 18 42
- 39 2,061 403 2,50¢
. - - 14,634 14,634

$ 37¢  $ 88 $ 2,85 $ 15270 $ 18,59:
$ - 3 13 13 8 142 % 156
- - 686 340 1,02¢
- 22 21 8 51
- - 1,963 - 1,96:
- - 2,053 412 2,46t
- 23 4,736 902 5,661
- - - 1,528 1,528
378 65 (1,883) 12,843 11,403
378 65 (1,883) 14,371 12,931

$ 37¢ $ 88 $ 2,85 % 1527 $ 18,59:
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IODWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Special Revenue Capital Projects
Bridge
Johnso Street, an
County Traffic
Economi Council of Contro Othe
Developmer Government Constructiol Constructiol Total
Revenue
Property taxe $ 3,68 $ - 0% - % - $ 3,68¢
Intergovernment - 272 2,107 194 2,57:
Use of money and prope 36 - 20 244 30C
Miscellaneou 40 3 31 13 87
Total revenue 3,76¢ 27E 2,15¢ 451 6,64¢
Expenditures
Current
Public safel - - - 547 547
Public work - - 1,04¢ 96 1,14(
Culture and recreati - - - 20t 20t
Community and econon
developmel 1,031 614 - 39 1,68¢
General governme - - - 73 73
Capital outla - 4 4,59; 4,89( 9,48¢
Total expenditure 1,031 61¢ 5,63¢ 5,85( 13,13
Excess (deficiency) of revenues ¢
(under) expenditur 2,73¢ (343 (3,478 (5,399 (6,487
Other Financing Sources (Use:
Issuance of bon - - - 7,19(C 7,19(C
Sale of capital asst - - - 36C 36C
Premium on issuance of bol - - - 15¢ 15¢
Transfers i - 33¢€ 3,86¢ 27¢ 4.47¢
Transfers ot (2,727 - (672 (2,297 (5,696
Total other financing sourc
and (use (2,727 33¢ 3,19( 5,691 6,49:
Net change in fund balan: 6 (5) (288; 29z 5
Fund Balances, Beginnin 37z 70 (1,595 14,07¢ 12,92¢
Fund Balances, Endini $ 37¢  $ 65 $ (1,883 $ 14,37 $ 12,93:
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds account for operations and aetviof the City that are financed and operated maanel
similar to a private business enterprise, and wliieeecosts of providing services to the general iputsh a
continuing basis are expected to be financed avexed primarily through user charges, or whereGhg has
decided that periodic determination of revenuesagirexpenses incurred, and/or net income is apptedior
capital maintenance, public policy, management cgné@countability, or other purposes. The funds irs
category are as follows:

Airport Fund — accounts for the operation and maintenance of therbfguidlity.
Stormwater Fund — accounts for the operation and maintenance of thenstatier operation.
Cable Television Fund— accounts for the operation and maintenance efBitoadband Telecommunicatic

Commission that oversees the franchise agreeméehtthx cable television company, including producimd
broadcasting on the government television channels.

87



CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Asset:
Current assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts and unbilled usage
Interest
Due from other governments
Total current asse

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Capital assets:
Land
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Accumulated depreciation
Construction in progre

Total noncurrent ass
Total asse

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Accrued liabilitie:

Total current liabilitie

Noncurrent liabilities:
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Deposits
Advances from other funds
Other Post Employment Benefits Obliga
Total noncurrent liabilitie
Total liabilitie:

Net Asset:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricte!
Total net asse

Cable
Airport Stormwate Televisior Total
$ 80b 1,349 $ 1,154 $ 2,583
- 67 177 244
1 9 9 1¢
624 - - 62¢
70E 1,42¢ 1,34( 3,47(
9 - 111 120
7,324 2,156 - 9,48(
3,563 - 741 4,304
357 - - 357
281 260 94 63E
7,122 34,024 - 41,14¢
(3,706) (7,072) (276) (11,054
3,24: 34C - 3,58t
18,19: 29,70¢ 67C 48,57:
18,89¢ 31,13¢ 2,01(C 52,04:
35 123 112 270
591 - - 591
3 14 44 61
62¢ 137 15€ 92z
9 - - 9
1,299 - - 1,29¢
1 2 10 13
1,30¢ 2 10 1,321
1,93¢ 13¢ 16€ 2,24:
18,184 29,708 559 48,451
(1,224 1,28¢ 1,28t 1,347
$ 16,96( $ 30,99 $ 1,84¢  $ 49,79¢
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Cable
Airport Stormwate Televisior Total
Operating Revenues
Charges for servic $ 248 $ 62z $ 78¢ % 1,65¢
Miscellaneou 28 3 - 32
Total operating revent 277 62F 78€ 1,69(
Operating Expenses
Personal servic 61 15¢& 47¢ 69t
Commoditie 20 20z 27 24¢
Services and charg 19¢ 157 90 44E
27¢ 514 59¢€ 1,38¢
Depreciatio 41E 70¢ 32 1,15¢
Total operating expen: 694 1,22 62€ 2,54t
Operating income (lo¢ (417, (598 16C (855
Nonoperating Revenues (Expense:
Operating gran 2 - - 2
Interest incorr - 30 27 57
Total nonoperating revenues (exper 2 30 27 59
Income (loss) before capital contributi
and transfe (415; (568; 187 (796,
Capital contributior 3,23¢ 68 - 3,307
Transfers i 19t 32C - 51E
Transfers ot (37) - (160 (197,
Change in net ass 2,982 (180; 27 2,82¢
Net Assets, Beginnin 13,97¢ 31,17 1,817 46,96¢
Net Assets, Endini $ 16,96( $ 30,99: $ 184 $ 49,79¢
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Cable
Airport Stormwate Televisior Total
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and u $ 28C $ 62¢ $ 798 $ 1,701
Payments to supplie (262 (284, (113 (659;
Payments to employe (67) (146, (479 (692
Net cash flows from operating activit (49) 19€ 203 35C
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activitie:
Transfers from other fun 19t 32C - 51E
Transfers to other fun (37) - (160; (197,
Advances from other fun 94 - - 94
Net cash flows from noncapital financing adtes 252 32C (160; 412
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financin
Activities
Capital grants receiv 3,24¢ - - 3,24¢
Acquisition and construction of property andiipgnen (3,475 (428, (6) (3,909
Proceeds from sale of prope - 6 - 6
Net cash flows from capital and related finag
activitie! (226, (422 (6) (654,
Cash Flows From Investing Activitie:
Interest on investmer 12 31 30 73
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cashiaeui (12) 12t 67 181
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginnir 10C 1,22¢ 1,19¢ 2,52
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Endin $ 89 $ 1,34¢  $ 1,268 $ 2,70¢

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to n
cash flows from operating activities
Operating income (los $ 417, % (598 $ 16C $ (855,
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (Jas
net cash flows from operating activit

Depreciation exper 41F 70¢ 32 1,15¢
Changesii
Receivable
Accounts and unbilled us 4 1 7 12
Accounts payal (44) 75 4 35
Accrued liabilitie ) 7 (10) (10)
Deposit Q) - - (1)
Other Post Employment Benefits Oblige 1 2 10 13
Total adjustmen 36¢& 794 43 1,20¢
Net cash flows from operating activi $ (49) $ 196 $ 202 % 35C

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activitis:
Contributions of capital assets from governmert ather $ - $ 68 $ - $ 68
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds account for goods and sesvicovided by one department to other City depamrtsnon ¢
cost-reimbursement basis. The funds in this category are:

Equipment Maintenance Fund— accounts for the provision of maintenance for @éficles and equipment a
vehicle rental to other City departments from a centhlale pool.

Central Services Fund— accounts for the support services of photocapypaper supplies, mail, overnic
shipping, and two-way radios provided to other City depamts

Loss Reserve Fund- accounts for the property, liability, Workers’ Compensatiod health insurance premiu
and claims activity for City departments, including thié-issured retention portion.

Information Technology Fund — accounts for the accumulation and allocation o$t€ associated wi
telecommunications and data processing, including thetiperand replacement of equipment.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Asset:
Current asset
Equity in pooled cash and investm
Receivable:
Interes
Due from other governmel
Inventorie
Total current asst
Noncurrent asse'
Capital asset
Lanc
Buildings
Improvements other than buildit
Machinery and equipme
Infrastructur
Accumulated depreciati
Construction in progre
Total noncurrent ass

Total asse

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payab
Accrued liabilitie
Total current liabilitie

Noncurrent liabilities

Other Post Employment Benefits Obliga

Total liabilities

Net Asset:
Invested in capital assets, net of related
Unrestrictes

Total net asse

June 30, 2009

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Equipmen Centra Loss Informatior
Maintenanc Service Reserv Technolog Total
$ 6,721 60€ $ 6,97¢ $ 2,697 17,00t
47 4 57 20 12¢
55 - - - 55
33z - - - 33z
7,15¢ 612 7,03¢ 2,717 17,52(
45 - - - 45
57¢ - - 252 831
50 - - - 50
11,52¢ 22€ 8 1,401 13,16:
- - - 1,00¢ 1,00¢
(8,306 (134, (2) (1,442 (9,884
19¢ - - - 19¢
4,094 92 6 1,21¢ 5,41(
11,24¢ 704 7,04z 3,93t 22,93(
17E 21 34 31 261
10z 3 2,08¢ 91 2,28(
277 24 2,11¢ 12z 2,541
a7 1 a7 21 (12)
26C 25 2,101 143 2,52¢
4,094 92 6 1,21¢ 5,41(
6,89t 587 4,93t 2,574 14,99:
$ 10,98¢ 67¢ $ 4941 % 3,792 20,40:




CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Equipmen Centra Loss Informatior
Maintenanc Service Reserv Technolog Total
Operating Revenues
Charges for servic $ 4847 $ 344 % 8,39¢ $ 1,88: $ 15,47
Miscellaneou - - 17 - 17
Total operating revent 4,847 344 8,41¢ 1,882 15,48¢
Operating Expenses
Personal servic 831 41 152 98¢ 2,01(
Commoditie 2,004 21 13 22¢ 2,261
Services and charg 42°% 221 8,78¢ 46E 9,89t
3,25¢ 28¢ 8,951 1,67¢ 14,16¢
Depreciatio 95¢€ 19 1 15& 1,131
Total operating expen: 4,21¢ 30z 8,95 1,82¢ 15,29’
Operating income (lo¢ 638 42 (536, 53 192
Nonoperating Revenues (Expense:
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital as 45 Q) - - 44
Interest incorr 14¢ 15 17€ 72 41%
Total nonoperating revenues (exper 198 14 17¢ 72 457
Income (loss) before capital contributi
and transfe 82¢ 56 (358 12t 64¢
Capital contributior 4 - - - 4
Transfers i 2717 - - - 2717
Transfers ot - - - (59) (59)
Change in net ass 1,10% 56 (358 66 871
Net Assets, Beginnin 9,88: 622 5,29¢ 3,72¢ 19,53(
Net Assets, Endini $ 10,98¢ $ 67¢ $ 4941 $ 3,79: $ 20,40

93



CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Equipment Central Loss Information
Maintenance Services Reserve Technology Total
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users $ 4,968 344 $ 8,416 $ 1882 $ 15,60¢€
Payments to suppliers (2,729) (227) (8,891) (861) (12,70¢
Payments to employees (831) (39) (80) (956) (1,90€
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,404 78 (555) 65 992
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financini
Activities
Transfers from other funds 277 - - - 271
Operating transfers to other funds - - - (59) (59
Net cash flows from noncapital financing
activities 277 - - (59) 218
Cash Flows From Capital and Relate
Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of property
and equipment (951) (42) - 9) (1,00z
Proceeds from sale of property 51 - - 4 5E
Net cash flows from capital and related
financing activities (900) (42) - (5) (947
Cash Flows From Investing Activitie:
Interest on investments 149 16 188 75 42€
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents 930 52 (367) 76 691
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginnir 5,791 55€ 7,34¢€ 2,621 16,31«
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Endin $ 6,721 $ 60 $ 6,97¢ $ 26971 $ 17,00¢
Reconciliation of operating income (lost
to net cash flows from operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ 633 $ 42 $ (536) $ 53 $ 19z
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash flows from operating
activities:
Depreciation expense 956 19 1 155 1,131
Changes in:
Receivables:
Accounts and unbilled usage 3 - - - 3
Due from other governments 114 - - - 11¢
Inventories (12) - - - (11
Accounts payable (291) 15 (92) (173) (541
Accrued liabilities 17 1 89 9 11¢€
Other Post Employment Benefits
Obligation (17) 1 (17) 21 (12
Total adjustments 771 36 (19) 12 80C
Net cash flows from operating activit $ 140¢  $ 78 % (555 $ 65 $ 992
Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financin
Activities:
Contributions of fixed assets fr
government and others $ 4% - $ - $ - $ 4
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AGENCY FUNDS

The Agency Funds account for assets held by thei@ia trustee or custodial capacity for other terg;
such as individuals, private organizations, or other gowental units. The funds in this category are:

Project Green Fund— accounts for donations that are received tot@ad develop yards and lawns, b
public and private, within lowa City.

Library Foundation — accounts for donations that are made to support ttaeylidevelopment office.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Project Green

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Interest receivable

Total asse

Liabilities
Due to agency
Total liabilities

Library Foundation

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Liabilities
Accrued liabilities
Total liabilities

Total Agency Funds

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Total asse

Liabilities

Accrued liabilities

Due to agency
Total liabilities

AGENCY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30,
$ 2138 67 $ 49 23C

2 2 2 2

$ 214 % 69 $ 51 232
$ 214 % 69 $ 51 232
$ 214 % 69 $ 51 232
$ i:) 9 % 9 4
5 1 - 6

$ 9 3% 10 3 9 10
$ 9 $ 10 $ 9 1C
$ 9 3 10 3 9 10
$ 216 76 $ 58 234
5 1 - 6

2 2 2 2

$ 22 % 79 $ 6C 242
$ 9 3% 10 $ 9 1C
214 69 51 232

$ 22 % 79 9 6C 242

96



Statistical Section

This part of the City of lowa City’'s comprehensiaenual financial report represents detai
information as a context for understanding whatittiermation in the financial statements, nc
disclosures, and required supplementary informasays about the government's over

financial health.
Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to Hedpréader understand how
the government’s financial performance and welhbehave changed over
time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help thedeeaassess the
government’s most significant local revenue source, tbpgpty tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help thedereaassess the
affordability of the government’s current levels aiftstanding debt and the
government’s ability to issue additional debt in the feitur

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economicdtais to help the
reader understand the environment within whichgbeernment's financial
activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastruaiate to help the reader
understand how the information in the governmefitiancial report relates
to the services the government provides and the aesvttperforms.

Pag:

99

10«

114

12

126

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedulesived from the comprehensive

annual financial report for the relevant year. The city implereeé GASB 34 in FY03; schedules

presenting government-wide information include information beggnim that year.
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Fiscal
Year

2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

GENERAL GOVERNMENT TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Modified accrual basis of accounting)

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Property Tax

24,271
27,071
28,623
31,966
34,958
36,076

38,336

42,221

44,101

47,861

Road Use Tax

104

4,928

4,852

5,077

5,103

5,311

5,269

5,303

5,305

5,432

5,254

Hotel/Motel Tax

554

497

646

559

580

611

674

683

734

713

Total
29,7!
32,4
34,3
37,6.
40,8.
41,9!
44,3

48,2

50,2

53,8



CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE OF PROPERTY
Last Ten Fiscal Yea

(amounts expressed in thousal

Fiscal Taxable Property Total Taxable Total
Year Ended Assessed Value/ Exempt Assessed Direct
June 30 Estimated Actual Value' Property Value® Value Tax Rate
200C 2,699,94. 136,49: 2,563,45. 13.85:
2001 2,920,58! 137,71: 2,782,86 14.75,
200z 2,975,25. 152,99: 2,822,26. 14.85(
200z 3,214,97. 155,40° 3,059,561 16.81:
200¢ 3,322,00. 176,18¢ 3,145,81 17.59¢
200¢ 3,834,43! 181,18¢ 3,653,24! 17.31¢
200¢ 3,953,78. 183,79¢ 3,769,98. 17.72¢
2007 4,280,83. 212,20 4,068,63: 17.30:
200¢ 4,365,62! 215,95! 4,149,67. 17.29;
200¢ 4,424,35! 217,90 4,206,45. 17.71;

Sources

1Johnson County Abstract Assessment
2City of lowa City Assessor's Office - Annual Report

Notes:
Propert' is reassesst in the odc numbere year: to make adjustment to all property values accordin¢ to curren marke
values

As pel the Code of lowa, all rea anc tangible persone propert' subjec to taxatior shal be valuec at its actua value and
excep as< otherwist provided shal be reassesst al 100% of its actua value anc the value sc assesse shal be taker anc
considered as the assessed value and taxableofdheproperty upon which the levy shall be m

Taxable property includes rea property buildings anc structures industria plant anc fixtures commercia equipmen
assessed as real property, agriculture, residesrtiagriculture, and utilities distribution prope

Exemp property include: all property thal is ownec by religious anc educatione institutions charitable anc benevoler

societies low-rent housin¢ anc associatior for war veterans Eact mus apply for property tax exemp statu: with the City
Assesso whc determine if the property qualifies undel stat¢ guidelines Exemp propert' is assesse eacl yeal like othel
taxable property. Property owned by governmenntéties is not taxable and is not included in “ExgrRroperty”
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
PROPERTY TAX BUDGETS AND COLLECTIONS

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Cash basis of accounting)

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Percent of Total as
Collection Total Tax  Current Tax Levy Delinquent Tax Total Tax a Percent of
Year Levied Collections Collected Collections Collections Levy
200C $ 23,94t % 23,98¢ 100.z $ 5 % 23,99¢ 100.z %
2001 26,08¢ 25,68« 98.4 31 25,71t 98.¢
200z 27,92( 28,42 101.¢ 5 28,42¢ 101.¢
2003 31,975 31,863 99.6 16 31,879 99.7
2004 34,073 34,009 99.8 23 34,032 99.9
2005 34,403 34,814 101.2 15 34,829 101.2
2006 36,460 36,654 100.5 44 36,698 100.7
2007 39,094 38,947 99.6 13 38,960 99.7
2008 39,973 39,768 99.5 70 39,838 99.7
2009 43,168 43,118 99.9 18 43,136 99.9

Source: Certificate of City Taxes and Johnson County Tueass Offic

Note: Collection of Delinquent Taxes not available byylgear. Presented in year collec
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

SALES HISTORY AND TOTAL WATER CHARGES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Water Sales Water Syster
Year Cubic Feet Sold Charges
2000 N/A N/A
2001 245,725,159 $8,837,3:
2002 253,409,874 9,049,7C
2003 257,788,030 9,308,82
2004 253,454,012 8,850,6
2005 254,560,239 8,315,7
2006 267,107,998 8,844,9
2007 261,072,632 8,414,3
2008 249,361,929 7,976,5
2009 234,804,167 7,497,9

Sources:

Sources:

City of lowa City Revenue Department

Notes:
N/A Not available
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

SALES HISTORY AND TOTAL SEWER CHARGES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Sewer Sales Sewer Syste
Year Cubic Feet Sold Charges
2000 N/A N/A
2001 299,381,463 $11,111,31
2002 292,323,306 11,431,9¢
2003 297,084,229 12,015,12
2004 294,683,685 12,482,3
2005 297,714,953 12,557,€
2006 302,925,357 12,373,7
2007 315,199,203 11,084,2
2008 285,492,596 12,221,7
2009 276,455,246 12,499,¢

Sources:

Sources:

City of lowa City Revenue Department

Notes:
N/A Not available
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR
GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDIT URES'

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Total
General
Fiscal Year Governmental Ratio of Debt
Ended Total Expenditures Service to Genere
June 30 Principal Interest Debt Service and Transfers Expenditures
2000 $ 2,918 $ 1,360 $ 4278 $ 52,727 .08 :1.00
2001 3,541 1,763 5,304 53,898 .10:1.00
2002 3,599 2,136 5,735 53,462 .11:1.00
2003 4,742 3,683 8,425 82,001 .10:1.00
2004 5,172 3,336 8,508 83,445 .10:1.00
2005 9,349 3,676 13,025 88,342 .15:1.00
2006 6,099 3,458 9,557 93,360 .10:1.00
2007 6,700 3,464 10,164 93,639 .11:1.00
2008 7,323 3,556 10,879 99,178 .11:1.00
2009 8,418 3,364 11,782 102,607 .11:1.00

Notes:
! General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Debt Service Fund.
2 Beginning in FY03, Capital Projects Funds are also included.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
June 30, 2009

(amounts expressed in thousands, except per capita)

Amount
Total General % Applicable Applicable
Long-Term to the to the
Name of Bonded Debt City of City of
Governmental Unit Outstanding lowa City lowa City Per Capita
City of lowa City $ 84,995 100.00% 84,995 1,25
lowa City Community
School District 26,690 59.85% 15,974 235
Total $ 111,685 $ 100,969 $ 1,489
Per capita assessed value $ 64,360

Source: Johnson County Auditor's Offi

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at leagpart, with the geographic boundaries of the i
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding débthose overlapping governments that is borne by
residents and businesses of lowa City. This process revegnihat, when considering the city's ability to is
and repay long-term debt, the entire burden borne by thedeets and businesses should be taken into acc
However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a redidemd therefore responsible for repaying the deb
each overlapping government.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IDWA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
Last Ten Fiscal Yea

(amounts expressed in thousa

Fiscal
Year Net Revenue Annual Debt Servicé
Ended Available for Ratio of
June 30 Revenue Expense’ Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
Parking Revenué
2000 $ 3,716 $ 1,861 $ 1,855 $ 455 $ 139 $ 594 3.1z
2001 4,309 2,176 2,133 485 836 1,321 1.61
2002 4,272 1,960 2,312 510 746 1,256 1.84
2003 4,198 1,953 2,245 375 715 1,090 2.0€
2004 4,164 2,319 1,845 395 687 1,082 1.71
2005 4,360 2,377 1,983 305 663 968 2.0¢
2006 4,161 2,380 1,781 320 645 965 1.8¢
2007 5,035 2,973 2,062 335 626 961 2.1¢
2008 4,995 2,454 2,541 355 606 961 2.6¢
2009 5,630 3,024 2,606 370 584 954 2.7¢
Wastewater Treatment Revenu*
2000 $ 11872 % 3,259 $ 8,613 $ 2,160 $ 3,691 $ 5,851 1.47
2001 12,824 3,248 9,576 2,505 3,589 6,094 1.57
2002 12,501 3,389 9,112 3,005 4,236 7,241 1.2€
2003 13,000 4,463 8,537 3,060 4,385 7,445 1.1¢
2004 12,947 4,523 8,424 3,280 3,672 6,952 1.21
2005 12,600 4,432 8,168 3,630 3,537 7,167 1.14
2006 12,798 4,260 8,538 3,815 3,390 7,205 1.1¢
2007 13,708 4,236 9,472 3,905 3,234 7,139 1.3z
2008 13,332 4,581 8,751 4,105 3,071 7,176 1.2z
200¢° 13,462 5,202 8,260 4,260 2,813 7,073 1.17
Water Revenué
2000 $ 9,626 $ 3,384 $ 6,242 $ -$ 299 % 299 20.8¢
2001 10,629 3,410 7,219 140 445 585 12.3¢
2002 10,179 3,428 6,751 705 1,175 1,880 3.5¢
2003 10,241 4,361 5,880 500 1,088 1,588 3.7¢C
2004 10,627 4,360 6,267 925 1,427 2,352 2.6€
2005 9,287 4,783 4,504 845 1,340 2,185 2.0€
2006 9,918 5,722 4,196 880 1,305 2,185 1.9z
2007 9,220 5,356 3,864 915 1,268 2,183 1.77
2008 9,258 5,348 3,910 955 1,229 2,184 1.7¢
2009 8,833 5,726 3,107 995 1,171 2,166 1.43
Notes:

! Excludes depreciation and interest.
?Includes principal and interest of revenue bonds.on

3Parking Revenue bonds ratio of "Net Revenue Availtsl®ebt Service" to "Total Annual Debt Servic
is required to be at least 1.25.

“Wastewater Treatment Revenue bonds ratio of "NetRevavailable for Debt Service" to "Tot
Annual Debt Service" is required to be at leas01

SWater Revenue bonds ratio of "Net Revenue Availal®Ebt Service" to "Total Annual Debt Servi
is required to be at least 1.10.

® Refunded Revenue Bonds paid are excluded from theipairof Annual Debt Service.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
REVENUE DEBT ANNUAL MATURITY BY FUNDING SOURCE

Parking
Outstanding
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 370,000 $ 584,298 $ 954,298
2010 390,000 561,973 951,973
2011 410,000 538,473 948,473
2012 430,000 513,798 943,798
2013 455,000 487,801 942,801
2014 480,000 460,335 940,335
2015 505,000 431,401 936,401
2016 535,000 400,851 935,851
2017 565,000 368,468 933,468
2018 600,000 334,100 934,100
2019 630,000 297,815 927,815
2020 670,000 259,465 929,465
2021 710,000 218,400 928,400
2022 750,000 174,600 924,600
2023 795,000 128,250 923,250
2024 845,000 79,050 924,050
2025 895,000 26,850 921,850
Total $ 10,035,000 $ 5,865,928 $ 15,900,928
Sewer

Outstanding

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 4,260,000 $ 2,812,609 $ 7,072,609
2010 4,205,000 2,307,469 6,512,469
2011 4,720,000 2,031,945 6,751,945
2012 4,945,000 1,856,145 6,801,145
2013 5,095,000 1,670,193 6,765,193
2014 3,260,000 1,513,934 4,773,934
2015 3,395,000 1,388,615 4,783,615
2016 3,550,000 1,251,959 4,801,959
2017 3,690,000 1,103,155 4,793,155
2018 3,860,000 944,683 4,804,683
2019 4,015,000 776,608 4,791,608
2020 4,220,000 587,173 4,807,173
2021 3,895,000 388,688 4,283,688
2022 2,485,000 232,288 2,717,288
2023 1,220,000 141,250 1,361,250
2024 700,000 93,250 793,250
2025 740,000 57,250 797,250
2026 775,000 19,375 794,375
Total $ 59,030,000 $ 19,176,589 $ 78,206,589

(continued)
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

REVENUE DEBT ANNUAL MATURITY BY FUNDING SOURCE (continued)

Water
Outstanding
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 995,000 $ 1,171,392 $ 2,166,392
2010 680,000 1,054,596 1,734,596
2011 1,110,000 901,971 2,011,971
2012 1,200,000 861,409 2,061,409
2013 1,245,000 817,855 2,062,855
2014 1,295,000 771,806 2,066,806
2015 1,345,000 722,795 2,067,795
2016 1,395,000 670,768 2,065,768
2017 1,450,000 615,530 2,065,530
2018 1,515,000 556,281 2,071,281
2019 1,575,000 493,487 2,068,487
2020 1,645,000 427,519 2,072,519
2021 1,715,000 357,303 2,072,303
2022 1,790,000 281,468 2,071,468
2023 1,870,000 200,160 2,070,160
2024 1,325,000 128,847 1,453,847
2025 1,390,000 68,481 1,458,481
2026 835,000 18,788 853,788
Total $ 24,375,000 $ 10,120,456 $ 34,495,456
Notes:

!Amounts for Principal excludes called revenue bonds.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY F  UNCTION
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-Time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Public Safety
Police 96.25 96.25 97.25 97.25 97.25 94.2!
Fire 52 52 58 58 58 56
Animal shelter 5.5 55 5.5 6 6 6
Inspection services 14.13 14.13 14.13 14.13 14.13 13.
Public Works
Public works admin 2 3 2 2 2 2
Engineering 10.6 11.6 13.6 13.6 13.6 11.€
Traffic engineering 4.15 4.15 4.15 5.65 5.65 5.6¢
Streets 23.5 235 235 22 22 22
Culture and Recreation
Parks and rec admin 2 2 2 2 2 2
Recreation 14.67 15.17 15.17 15.17 15.17 15.1
Parks 13 13 13 13 13 12
Forestry 3 3 3 3 3 3
Cemetery 3 3 3 3 3 3
CBD maintenance 3 3 3 3 3 3
Library 40.25 40.25 41.25 41.25 43.25 42.6%
Senior center 6 6 6 5.81 5.81 6.31
Community and Economic Developn 8.55 8.55 9.05 8.35 9.45 8.45
General Government
City council 7 7 7 7 7 7
City manager 3 3 3 3 3 3
City clerk 5 4.5 4.5 4 4 4
City attorney 6 6 6.6 6.6 6.6 6.6
Tort liabiltiy, insurance
Personnel 4 4 4 4 4 4
Finance 27.71 27.36 28.61 28.61 28.61 26.6
Government buildings 4.08 4.97 4.96 4.96 4.96 4.9
Energy conservation 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.t
Human rights 2 2 2 25 25 25
Transit 48.25 48.25 48.5 48.5 48.5 50.5
Special Revenue
Employee benefits 0.45 0.45 0.4 0.34 0.34 0.3
CIP / roads 7 6 7 7 7 3
Community development 4,75 4.75 4.75 5.45 5.35 4.3
JCCOG 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1
Library development 1.5 15 15 15 15 0.8
Internal Service Funds
Information technology 7.95 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 8
Equipment 9.5 9.5 10.25 11.25 11.26 11.2¢
Central services 2.1 2.25 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.7
Risk management 1.56 1.46 1.26 1.33 1.33 1.3
Business-Type Activities
Parking 30.5 37 37 315 315 32.75
Wastewater treatment 25.3 25.3 26.3 26.3 27.3 27
Water 26.2 26.2 28.2 30.7 317 31.7
Sanitation 31.85 32.35 32.35 32.35 32.35 34.3
Airport 1.75 2 2 2 2 2
Cable television 5.25 5.25 5.25 6.19 6.19 6.1¢
Stormwater
Housing authority 10.75 12.5 12.5 12.5 12.5 12.7!
Total 581.65 591.79 606.38 605.64 610.65 599.5

Source City's Financial Plans. 126



Full-Time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

2006 2007 2008 2009
94.25 96.25 96.25 103.:
57 57 57 57
6 6 6 6
14.88 14.88 15.38 15:¢
2 2 2 2
11.6 11.6 11.35 11.2
4.15 4.15 4.15 41
23.5 235 23.5 25.
2 2 2 2
15.17 15.42 15.42 15«
13 13 13 18
3 3 3 3
3 3 3 3
3 3 3 3
42.63 42.89 43.14 43.1
6.31 6.31 6.31 6.3
8.45 8.45 8.95 9.0
7 7 7 7
3 3 3 3
4 4 4 4
6.6 6.6 6.6 ¢
1
4 4 4 4
26.75 26.75 26.5 25,
4.96 4.96 4.96 4.9
0.5 0.5 0.25 0.2
2.5 2.5 25 2.1
50.5 50.5 54.75 58.
0.39 0.39 0.29 0.2
2 2 1 2
4.35 4.35 3.98 3.8
6.6 6.6 6.6 6.t
1 1 1 1
11.75 12 12.3 12.
11.26 11.26 11.26 112
0.75 0.75 0.75 0.7
1.38 1.38 1.73 1.9
32.75 32.75 32.75 33.2
255 255 255 25.
32.5 32 32.75 32.7
33.85 33.85 34.85 35.¢
1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7
6.19 6.19 6.19 6.4
0.5 1 2 1.¢
13.25 13.25 13.25 13.2
605.37 608.13 614.81 630.!
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AU DIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WI TH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Gulun
City of lowa City, lowa

We have audited the financial statements of theegowental activities, the business-type activitiashe
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund in&irom of the City of lowa City, lowa, as of and tbe
year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively cosepttie City’s basic financial statements and hasteeis
our report thereon dated December 14, 2009. Weumted our audit in accordance with auditing stadslar
generally accepted in the United States of Amexiwhthe standards applicable to financial auditsacoad
in Government Auditing Standardssued by the Comptroller General of the Uniteates.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considehedCity’s internal control over financial repogias a
basis for designing our auditing procedures forghgrose of expressing our opinions on the findncia
statements, but not for the purpose of expressirapaion on the effectiveness of the City’s intérrontrol
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do nopegss an opinion on the effectiveness of the City&rnal
control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over finamegporting was for the limited purpose describedhie
preceding paragraph and would not necessarilyifgeait deficiencies in the internal control ovémdncial
reporting that might be significant deficienciesneaterial weaknesses. However, as discussed belew,
identified a certain deficiency in internal contooer financial reporting that we consider to ségaificant
deficiency and material weakness.

A control deficiency exists when the design or agien of the control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing thssigned functions, to prevent or detect missttéson

a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a cahleficiency, or combination of control deficieasj that
adversely affects the City’s ability to initiate tharize, record, process, or report financial datably in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America such thattie
more than a remote likelihood a misstatement of @itg’s financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detectethb City’s internal control. We consider the digficy in
internal control described in Part Il of the accamying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Codgis &
significant deficiency in internal control over &incial reporting.

A material weakness is a significant deficiencygambination of significant deficiencies, that lesin more
than a remote likelihood a material misstatemeth@financial statements will not be preventedaiected
by the City’s internal control.
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Our consideration of the internal control over fin&l reporting was for the limited purpose desin the
first paragraph of this section and would not nsagly identify all deficiencies in the internalrtool that
might be significant deficiencies and, accordinglguld not necessarily disclose all significanticiehcies
that are also considered to be material weaknddsagever, we believe the significant deficiency dsemt
above, item IIA® is a material weakness.

Compliance and Other M atters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance abouthwhthe City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliavittecertain provisions of laws, regulations, cants, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which coule lzadirect and material effect on the determimedio
financial statement amounts. However, providingginion on compliance with those provisions wasamot
olgctive of our audit, and accordingly, we do retpress such an opinion. The results of our tastdaked

no instances of noncompliance or other mattersateatequired to be reported un@avernment Auditing
Standards

Comments involving statutory and other legal matédrout the City’s operations for the year endee B8Q

Ay are based exclusively on knowledge obtainedofn procedures performed during our audit of the
financial statements of the City of lowa City, Iquaad are reported in Part |1l of the accompanoledule

of Findings and Questioned Costs. Since our aught based on tests and samples, not all transathiains
might have had an impact on the comments were saxdlsaudited. The comments involving statutorylan
other legal matters are not intended to constliagal interpretations of those statutes.

The City’s response to the finding identified inroaudit is described in the accompanying Schedtile o
Findings and Questioned Costs. While we have egptesur conclusion on the City’s response, we did n
audit the City’s response, and accordingly, we egpmno opinion on it.

This report, a public record by law, is intendededpfor the information and use of the officiagsnployees,
and citizens of the City of lowa City, lowa, andhet parties to whom the City of lowa City, lowa,yna
report, including federal awarding agencies andthesugh entities. This report is not intended be and
should not be used by anyone other than thesefigukparties.

@Mu%

Dubuque, lowa
December 14 ZIY except for Note 3 to the Schedalof Expenditures of Federal Awards which is dated
May 31, 212
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLET O
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City @dun
City of lowa City, lowa

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of I@ig, lowa, with the types of compliance requirensent
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Bu@d/1 BCircular At33 Compliance Supplemethiat

are applicable to each of its majr federal progsfor the year ended dine 3Q 212 The City’s maj r
federal programs are identified in the summary lté tndependent auditor’'s results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and QuestionextsC&ompliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements ablicto each of its majr federal programs is the
responsibility of the City’s management. Our resibitity is to express an opinion on the City’s qaiance
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordavideauditing standards generally accepted in thigdd
States of Americathe standards applicable to finahaudits contained iBovernment Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the UnitedeStand OMB Circular A133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizatiofisose standards and OM B Circular A133 requirathve plan

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above thatdcbale a direct and material effect on a mayr feale
program occurred. An audit includes examining, eesabasis, evidence about the City’'s complianck wit
those requirements and performing such other proesds we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonables fas our opinion. Our audit does not provide gale
determination on the City’s compliance with thosguirements.

In our opinion, the City of lowa City, lowa, comgdl, in all material respects, with the requiremesfisrred
to above that are applicable to each of its magdéral programs for the year ended dine 3Q 2I®

Subsequent to the issuance of the City’s ZBfinaial statements and our report dated December@ 2
we became aware that certain testing procedurageéedy U.S. Office of Management and Budget Gacu
A133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and NRnofit Organizations, had not been performed. Wpo
performing those procedures, we determined thdirfqIlA@should be included within this report. In
our original report we expressed an unqualifiedhimm on the ZI® compliance, and our opinion on
compliance, as expressed herein, remains unqguhlifie
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of lowa City, lowa, ésponsible for establishing and maintaining effecti
internal control over compliance with requiremeotdaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreésnen
applicable to federal programs. In planning andgeering our audit, we considered the City’s intdrna
control over compliance with requirements that dduve a direct and material effect on a majr feale
program in order to determine our auditing procedufior the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressmg@nion on the effectiveness of internal conteér
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an apiin the effectiveness of the City’s internal colrdver
compliance.

A control deficiency in the City’s internal contraver compliance exists when the design or operati@a
control does not allow management or employeeshennormal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noneompliance wétlype of compliance requirement of a federal @ogon

a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a cahtleficiency, or combination of control deficieasj that
adversely affects the City’s ability to administefederal program such that there is more thammates
likelihood noneompliance with a type of compliancequirement of a federal program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detectethie City’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiencycambination of significant deficiencies, that désun more
than a remote likelihood that material noneompl@nwith a type of compliance requirement of a feldera
program will not be prevented or detected by thg'€internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over comptiarwas for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessiaelytify all deficiencies in internal control thaight be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses dileot identify any deficiencies in internal caoitover
compliance that we consider to be material wealesss defined above.

This report, a public record by law, is intendededpfor the information and use of the officiagsnployees,
and citizens of the City of lowa City, lowa, andhet parties to whom the City of lowa City, lowa,yna
report, including federal awarding agencies andthesugh entities. This report is not intended be and
should not be used by anyone other than thesefigukparties.

@Mu%

Dubuque, lowa
December 14 21y except for Note 3 to the Schedelof Expenditures of Federal Awards and the mayr
program CFDA %®9Hazard Mitigation Grant Bwhi ch is dated May 31, 212
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Agency or
Passthrough Program
GrantoiProgram CEDA Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct Program
Community Development Block Grants/
Entitlement Grants 14218 $ 2875
Community Development Block Grants/
Entitlement Grants 14218 5500
88,84
Passed through program from
lowa Department of Economic Development
Community Development Block Grants/
State’s Program 1428 BRMHAL5 31034
Community Development Block Grants/
State’s Program 1428 @®RHZL0 350
Community Development Block Grants/
State’s Program 1428 BRBM 1%
Community Development Block Grants/
State’s Program 1428 EBRHAO aB3
118338
Direct Program
HOM E Investment Partnerships Program 14239 B6HD
HOM E Investment Partnerships Program 14239 163
HOM E Investment Partnerships Program 14239 BA2
HOM E Investment Partnerships Program 14239 13Q97
8038
Direct Program
Public and Indian Housing 148 168
Public and Indian Housing 148 1%336
2086
Direct Program
Section 8Housing Choice Vouchers 1481 63,38
Direct Program
Public Housing Capital Fund 1482 308
Public Housing Capital Fund 1482 3924
01y
Direct Program
Public Housing Capital Fund Stimulus
Formula)Recovery Act Funded 1485 3,336
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Develaprn 94814
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Agency or
Passthrough Program
GrantofProgram CFDA Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of distice
Passed through program from
lowa Department of distice
Violence Against Women Formula Grants

Direct Program
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program

Passed through program from
Governor’s Office of Drug Control Policy
Edward Byrne Memorial distice Assistance
Grant Program

Direct Program
Edward Byrne Memorial distice Assistance
Grant Program
Edward Byrne Memorial distice Assistance
Grant Program

Total U.S. Department of distice

U.S. Department of Transportation
Direct Program
Airport Improvement Program
Airport Improvement Program
Airport Improvement Program
Airport Improvement Program
Airport Improvement Program
Airport Improvement Program
Airport Improvement Program

1698

166Y
166Y

16738

16738

16738

D1®
016G
016G
016G
016G
D1®
016G
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Agency or
Passthrough Program
GrantoiProgram CEDA Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Transportation ¢ontinued)
Passed through program from
lowa Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction Db FHWAAG® $ 236
Highway Planning and Construction Db FHWAAG®b 2638
Highway Planning and Construction D25 FHWAAGB2 27B
Highway Planning and Construction Db FHWAAGB 5@
Highway Planning and Construction Db FHWAAG®! 80P
Highway Planning and Construction DZb FHWAA (8L -
DDIR RRW371.81 3,25
Highway Planning and Construction Db @M POLCOG 113,39
Highway Planning and Construction Db STPE37LH38/2 H6ED
Highway Planning and Construction D25 HDP37.%4 2 1,R)44
Highway Planning and Construction Db HDP37.%34 2 1,908
3,28,5D
Federal Transit —Capital Investment Grants )] |AQEL 3371Y 1736
Federal Transit —M etropolitan Planning Grants Q33 @M POLCOG 33,20
Direct Program
Federal Transit —Formula Grants 203y 98,132
Passed through program from
lowa Department of Transportation
Capital Assistance Program for Hderly Persons
and Persons with Disabilities 253 AL (L3716 R1A
db Access —Reverse Commute Pragct 5.6 ASKAB7® HEP
db Access —Reverse Commute Pragct 5.6 ASKAB7® B,
db Access —Reverse Commute Pragct 5.6 A3 KA 371 p2leis)
183D
New Freedom Program a3 |ARX@3 71 440
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Agency or
Passthrough Program
GrantoiProgram CEDA Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Transportation ¢ontinued)
Passed through program from
lowa Department of Public Safety, Governor’s
Traffic Safety Bureau
State and Community Highway Safety 206D PR @ Task 13 $ 3,48
Alcohol Traffic Safety and Drunk Driving
Prevention Incentive Grants 061 PAP@L Q Task 36 1501
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 77830
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed through program from
lowa Homeland Security & BEmergency
Management Division
Disaster Grants —Public Assistance
Presidentially Declared Disasters) aB6 FEV AL BBRIA 1,800
Hazard Mitigation Grant B) F®B9 FEMAPR17  &dl50 1,4,88
Hazard Mitigation Grant B) F®B9 DR1BD e 1,78
1%
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security BI66
Total $ NP

See notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Fédevards.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Feld@nards includes the federal grant activity of @igy

of lowa City, lowa, and is presented on the acdpaals of accounting. The information on this salieds
presented in accordance with the requirements dBGNtular A133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit OrganizationSherefore, some amounts presented in this sckeday differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, thie basncial statements.

NOTE 2. SUBRECIPIENTS

Of the federal expenditures presented in the scheduleityhaf @wa City, lowa, provided federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Federal Amount Provided
Program Title CEDA Number to Subrecipients
Community Development Block Grants/

Entitlement Grants 14218 $ FH6D
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 1439 504
Edward Byrne Memorial distice Assistance

Grant Program 16738 1281

NOTE 3. RESTATEMENT

The City’s ZID Schedule of Expenditures of FederalAwards was reissued to report #,5%.,8B of
expenditures under CFDA#Y.(B9Hazard Mitigation @GntB)instead of CFDA#X B6Disaster Grants —
Public Assistance Presidentially Declared Disase€FDA# I B9Hazard Mitigation Grant B)was
audited as a majr program. In addition, a matevieakness was added to the Schedule of Findingis an
Questioned Costs as finding IIA®
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Part I: Summary of the Independent Auditor's Results:

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued

Internal control over financial reporting:
M aterial weakness identified
Significant deficiency

Noncompliance material to financial statements dote

Federal Awards

Internal control over majr programs:
M aterial weakness identified
Significant deficiency

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance fagnprograms

Any audit findings disclosed that are required ¢ar&ported in
accordance with Circular A133, Section .5L@)

Identification of mayr programs:

CFDA Number

Unqualified

Yes
Yes

No

No
None reported

Unqualified

No

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

1428 Community Development Block Grants/

State’s Program

14239 HOM EInvestment Partnerships Program
D1® Airport Improvement Program

025 Highway Planning and Construction

dB9 Hazard Mitigation Grant B)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs

Auditee qualified as lowrisk auditee

12

%3,32

Yes



CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Part II: Findings Related to the Financial Statemeits:

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY/MATERIAL WEAKNESS

IIA® M aterial Adjstment to the Schedule of Expe nditures of Federal Awards

Criteria—A properly designed system of internal contrekofinancial reporting allows entities to
initiate, authorize, record, process, and reporaricial data reliably in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A133, Audits of Statelocal Governments, and NonProfit
Organizations.

Condition—An adjstment was made to the Schedule of Expéndes of Federal Awards to correct
a data entry error that was not identified throtighCity’s existing internal controls and resuliired
a material misstatement of the City’s Schedulexgdbditures of Federal Awards.

Cause-There is no formal internal review process foetSchedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards over City personnel administering the graporting. The cause of this error was a
data entry error on a CFDA number that was entirélde software used to prepare the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. CFDAnber % B6was entered rather than

d B9 Third party verification by the grant awading agency also confirmed the incorrect
CFDA number.

Hfect —The effect of this condition was that the fedeexpenditures were reported under an
incorrect CFDA number which resulted in a mayr gp@m not being identified as such.

RecommendatiorWe recommend that finance staff develop a revigacedure to insure that all
information included in the Schedule of Expenditid Federal Awards is correctly reported.

Response-Due to an increase in Federal and State fundorgflood and stimulus grants, the
Accounting Division hired an additional accountamiinuary 211 whose primary responsibility

is grants and who is able to commit more time @ngreporting. Going forward, this grant
accountant will look at CFDA numbers entered ifite software used to prepare the Schedule of
Expenditure of Federal Awards to verify data entry.

Conclusion-Response accepted.
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CITY OF IOWA CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Part lll: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting:

IIIA® Certified Budget —Disbursements before the March 21 ZI) amendmet exceeded the original
amount budgeted in the community and economic dpwent and debt service functions. Chapter
381 Dof the Code of lowa states, in part, Publicmonies may not be expended or encumbered
except under an annual or continuing appropridtion.

RecommendationrThe budget should have been amended in sufficenounts in accordance
with Chapter 381180f the Code of lowa before disltsements were allowed to exceed the budget.

ResponseThe City will continue to monitor expendituresi@an ongoing basis and in the future
will amend the budget prior to disbursements exicegtihe budgeted amounts.

Conclusion-Response accepted.

IIIB® Questionable Expenditures —We noted no expenditures that we believe may tiaimeet the
requirements of public purpose as defined in anrAtty General’s opinion dated April 3 19R

lNe® Travel Expense  —No expenditures of City money for travel expessd spouses of City officials or
employees were noted.

IIIB® Business Transactions —No business transactions between the City artg @ificials or employees
were noted.

IIIE® Bond Coverage —Surety bond coverage of City officials and emy#es is in accordance with
statutory provisions. The amount of coverage shbeldeviewed annually to insure the coverage is
adequate for current operations.

IIIF® Council Minutes —No transactions were found that we believe sdduve been approved in the
Council minutes but were not.

Il6® Deposits and Investments —No instances of noneompliance with the deposihd investment
provisions of Chapters 1B and 1ZC of the Code ofda and the City’s investment policy were
noted.

IIIH® Revenue Bonds —No instances of noneompliance with the provisie of the City’s revenue bond
resolutions were noted.

14



